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Introduction by the president
of the company

WING
oVerall, 2014 was the most
successful year in aero’s history

The year 2014 was a breakthrough for Aero in many ways.
The most significant development took place in the field of in-house products, specifically in the Defence & MRo Division.
After many years of effort, Aero successfully secured customers for surplus L-159A aircraft belonging to the Army of the
Czech Republic. The first customer is the US company Draken International, one of the world’s largest private operators
of military aircraft, which provides training services to American armed forces. L-159A aircraft will also serve the needs
of the US Air Force and the US Navy.
Iraq is the second customer for the L-159. They reopened the negotiations for the purchase of aircraft at the beginning of the year,
pushed forward very quickly, culminating in the signing of the agreement between Aero and the Iraqi Ministry of Defence in April 2014.
Both programmes contribute to the near-tripling of the L-159 fleet in operation, with the start of deliveries expected in the
second half of 2015.
The third very important milestone for Aero was the commencement of work on preparing the new generation of the L-39
aircraft for training military pilots in the 21st century. Aero publicly announced the launch of the first phase of the project
- engine installation - at the Farnborough Air Show in June 2014. We expect the inaugural flight of the L-39 with the new
Williams FJ-44M engine in the summer of 2015.
The Aerostructures Division successfully carried on with the development and delivery of its two most important
programmes - the supply of wing leading edges for the Bombardier CSeries regional transport aircraft, and four packages
of aircraft structures for the Embraer KC-390 military transport aircraft.
The “Build to Print” programme supply of fuselage panels for Airbus A321 aircraft has experienced significant schedule delays;
however, by the end of the year, all necessary approvals have been obtained and work has begun on serial production.
Other Aerostructures Division programmes have successfully fulfilled their delivery schedules, in particular the cockpit programme for Sikorsky UH-60M helicopters, as well as manufacture of landing gear components for the Airbus A320 family.
Unfortunately the end of the year brought a significant reduction in the supply of the Sikorsky S-76D helicopter, which will
also significantly influence the company’s financial results for 2015.
Throughout the year, Aero further expanded its production capacities necessary for the successful rollout of the CSeries,
KC-390, and A321 programmes. Over 400 new employees joined the company, bringing the total number of employees
up to 2000. Aero also made a number of significant investments, including the purchase of a top quality 6-metre machining
centre for the manufacture of large profiles, in particular for the KC-390 programme.
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The third key theme of 2014 has been an increase in efficiency. To achieve this, Aero has allocated its capacity in the areas
of part fabrication, special processes, installation, quality support processes, and purchasing manufacturing technology
to the new operations Division.
Overall, 2014 was the most successful year in Aero’s history, despite the fact that it did not fulfil all the goals set at the end
of 2013. The overall view of the results for 2015 are the same or slightly worse than the results for 2014, primarily due to
the decline in supply of S-76D helicopters; however, thanks to a successful programme diversification in recent years, this
decline will be at least partially offset by the commencement of full production of Airbus A321 panels and Defence & MRO
Division deliveries. Starting in 2016, serial deliveries for the CSeries and KC-390 programmes will roll out and will remain
key drivers for company growth.

WING
A320

In 2013, Aero signed a new contract with the Italian
aviation manufacturer, Alenia Aermacchi, for delivery
of sets of fuselage panels for the Airbus A321
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WING
Company profile

Corporate Profile
AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. (hereinafter “Aero”) is a joint-stock company that was incorporated on 15 December 2011
(originally established as TULAREO a.s., the new name of AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. was entered in the Commercial Register
on 19 September 2012). The company’s registered office is located at Odolena Voda, Dolínek, U Letiště No. 374, postcode
250 70. The company was added to the Commercial Register administered by the Municipal Court in Prague on 15 December
2011 under Section B, File No. 17749. Aero’s Company Registration No. is 24194204, and its VAT Number is CZ24194204.
According to the terms of the Project for the Division of AERO Vodochody a.s., AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE, a.s. became
the successor company of AERO Vodochody a.s. and is now continuing the long and successful history of the original enterprise.
Until the end of 2006, almost 100% of the shares in AERO Vodochody a.s. were owned by the Czech Consolidation Agency.
On 4 January 2007, the Penta Group became the company’s sole shareholder and, in that same year, initiated a project for
restructuring the company. Between 2007 and 2011, Aero Vodochody a.s. achieved a cumulative net profit of CZK 1,523 million.
Effective 1 January 2012, the manufacturing division of AERO Vodochody a.s. was spun off to form AERO Vodochody
AEROSPACE a.s., with the Penta Group remaining the 100% owner of both companies. Aero’s registered capital of CZK
1,002 million is fully paid-up. In 2014, Aero reported a profit of CZK 226.5 million.
Aero is the Czech Republic’s largest aviation manufacturer. Its activities include the development, manufacture, sale, and
servicing of technology for both the military as well as the civil sectors. The company’s primary focus is on collaboration
with leading aircraft manufacturers within the context of international projects. In addition, Aero’s Defence & MRO division

we continuously expand our portfolio
of customers among the world leaders
in aViation production

is a long-term partner of the armed forces in many countries, particularly the Army of the Czech Republic. Aero has successfully
implemented a quality management system certified in compliance with AS 9100/ISO 9001, and holds all of the relevant
attestations and certificates for the company as a whole as well as for its individual processes, thus meeting the criteria
of national and international standards. For the final products it manufactures, Aero is authorised to perform each individual
activity that is involved, i.e. it has the appropriate licences for development, manufacture, maintenance, and maintenance training.
As far as Aero’s sub-contractor activities are concerned, the company holds individual approvals for its Quality Management System and Special Processes both from its individual customers as well as within the framework of NADCAP accreditation.

Aerostructures Division
The Aerostructures Division of AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. is a 1st and 2nd tier supplier to leading world aerospace
manufacturers. Aero focuses primarily on the manufacture and assembly of complex aircraft assemblies with a high degree of
product finalization, including systems integration and testing, supply management, and final inspection. Aero has also considerable potential in the production of landing gears and composites. The Aerostructures Division is involved in the complete lifecycle of
commercial and military projects, combining the company’s extensive experience in the aviation industry acquired during over ninety
years of its existence with concurrent implementation of the latest technologies, testing methods, and lean production principles.
Aero continuously expands its portfolio of customers among the world leaders in aviation production. Since 2009 it has been
striving to achieve balance between production programmes and risk-sharing development programmes to ensure longterm, highly prospective contracts. The main customers of the Aerostructures Division are Sikorsky Aircraft Corporation
(S-76D, UH-60M, S-70i programmes), Embraer (KC-390), Sonaca (Bombardier CSeries), Alenia Aermacchi (Airbus A321,
C-27J), Messier-Bugatti-Dowty (Airbus A320), and Latecoere (Embraer E-170/190).

Engineering Division

Aero is historically the world's largest
manufacturer of jet trainers which
declares quality and effectivity
of the development.
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AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. provides a full range of engineering – from concept design to testing & certification
across airframe and systems using to full concurrent engineering practices. The division is able to offer a wide range
of product development due to a flexible and efficient structure – from work package assembly development inclusive
of risk-sharing programmes (such as the CSeries and KC-390 programmes) to engineering services with OEM inclusive
of structural work packages and support services. Aero has more than 150 experienced development engineers, including
designers, analysts, technical personnel, and system specialists. Aero has extensive technical experience with the development of commercial and military aircraft.

WING
operations diVision expands
technological capabilities of aero

Company profile

Defence & MRo Division

operations Division

The Defence & MRO (Maintenance, Repair and Overhaul) Division of AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. focuses on support
and development of its final products – L-39, L-59, and L-159 aircraft, as well as on provision of various services in the field
of aircraft repairs, upgrades, modifications, and testing.

AVA Operations integrates the majority of all operational assets and capabilities within Aero. The division was created
in April 2014 and the COO was appointed starting October 2014. Operations is solely dedicated to serve to internal
customers, which are Aerostructures, Defence & MRO and the Engineering divisions. As of 31.12.2014, Operations employed
1593 workers, making it the largest division of the company.

An L-159 system, consisting of the L-159 ALCA/B/T aircraft, integrated logistic support, ground training system, flight
planning and evaluation means, and other equipment, has been successfully implemented in the Czech Air Force. L-159
ALCA single-seat light combat aircraft were put in service the Czech Air Force in 2000; the two-seat training-combat version
L-159T arrived in 2007. The L-159 aircraft perform a broad number of tasks from advanced and operations training over
close air support up to reconnaissance missions and air defence. They regularly participate in international NATO flying
training events (such as the Tactical Leadership programme, NATO Air Meet, Clean Hunter, and Flying Rhino). Aero continued
to provide support to L-39 and L-59 aircraft users. The Defence & MRO Division provides L-39/L-59 aircraft users with
a broad portfolio of services from service life extensions and overhauls up to the overall upgrade of aircraft systems.
In addition to the programmes relating to the aircraft produced by the company, the Defence & MRO division also offers its
customers various services relating to aircraft modification and testing. To support the activities of the Defence & MRO
Division, Aero maintains the necessary capacities in the fields of aircraft and aerospace product design, logistics, flight
testing, as well as premises and preparation and testing equipment for aircraft production and maintenance. The company
also ensures support for and maintenance of DV-2 jet engines through its subsidiary Clarex.

The Defence & MRO
Division focuses on support
and development
of its final products – L-39,
L-59, and L-159 aircraft.
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The principal operational areas concentrated within the division are:
• Manufacturing engineering
• Sourcing and logistics
• Detailed part fabrication – CNC machining, sheet metal forming, welding, tube bending, etc.
• Special processes – various surface treatments, heat treatment, painting and others
• Composite part fabrication
• Assembly operations
• Quality function including non-destructive testing
• Facilities and Maintenance
Key initiatives and projects undertaken during the year 2014 were especially:
1. Human resources: Continuing significant increase in number of workers and technicians, in order to cope with ramp up
of especially KC-390, CSeries and A321 programmes.
2. Expansion of technological capabilities by
a. Taking delivery and introduction into operational use of the automated riveting machine from the company Broetje.
The machine is utilized mainly on A321 panels programme but will also serve for the KC-390 programme
b. Decision to order 6 meter pallet machining CNC centre from UK company Sherman as well as a new 5 axis CNC
machine from Masturn.
Goals of the division operations for the year 2015
• Drive Quality and On time delivery
• Restructuring of the Operations organisation in accordance with best industry practice
• Review, modification and new implementation of key processes and functions to stabilise future activities
• Introduce a single source data driven management system to ensure consistency in all operations activities

WING
the engineering diVision successfully
initiated cooperation with external partners
outside of the cseries and Kc-390 programmes

Company profile

Strategic Goals

objectives for 2015

In 2014, Aero continued to focus on the key strategic themes that were initiated in 2013. Aero continued with its outsourcing
programme and with the implementation of the WING system, both internally as well as in conjunction with its suppliers.

• Acquire additional customers for the general overhaul programme for the L-39 aircraft and for the replacement
of the engines in the L-39 aircraft with a Williams FJ-44 engine
• Carry out the first flights and a public demonstration of the L-39 with the new Williams engine
• Acquire additional external programmes for the Engineering Division
• Cover the slump in the delivery of the S-76D helicopters
• Fully initiate the deliveries made under the A321 programme
• Improve on-time delivery (OTD) and reduce the expenses outlaid for quality
• Continue enhancing the management system with emphasis placed on advanced functions for increasing the effectiveness
of production planning and discrepancy, and improving the surveillance of the course of production operations
• Initiate the delivery of the L-159 aircraft under the programmes for Draken and for Iraq

For the Aerostructures Division, one of the primary goals was the commencement of supply and serial production of the
Airbus A321 programme; however, this goal was only partially fulfilled and remains an important goal for 2015. With regards
to the Bombardier CSeries and Embraer KC-390, Aero successfully continued to supply of the first serial / first test units.
At the end of the year, a significant reassessment of Sikorsky orders under the S-76D helicopter programme was conducted.
Due to the situation regarding additional certification conditions and subsequent delays in the delivery of helicopters to operators,
part of the deliveries for 2014 and a significant part of the 2015 deliveries have been rescheduled for 2016.
The Defence & MRO Division successfully continued its programme for the general overhaul of the L-39 and L-59 aircraft
for its foreign customers. Additionally, the development of the engine replacement solution in the L-39 aircraft with
a Williams FJ44 engine was very successful. There was a delay in the preparation of the delivery of the surplus L-159
aircraft to Draken International and the Iraqi Air Force, primarily as a result of the slow process of obtaining export
permits. In comparison, the negotiations with several customers for the general overhaul of L-39 aircraft enjoyed significant
progress. It is expected that these deals will be concluded in 2015.
The Engineering Division successfully initiated cooperation with external partners outside of the Aerostructures CSeries
and KC-390 programmes. A new partnership was established with the Italian Tecnam, for whom Aero is developing
a fuselage. In addition, the division carried out development tasks for the KC-390 aircraft for Embraer, also outside
of the context of the Aerostructures Division’s programme.

objectives for Period Ending 2017
• Acquire a new Design-to-Build programme for the Aerostructures Division (a production programme with the responsibility for developing a particular part of the aircraft structure)
• Deliver the first set for replacing the engines in the L-39 aircraft
• Acquire customers for the new generation L-39NG jet trainer aircraft
• Initiate the serial deliveries under the Embraer KC-390 programme
• Start the construction of the new production plant

Company Portfolio
AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. is a 100% owner of Clester Trading a.s., being in turn the sole shareholder of Clarex
Investments a.s. Clarex Investments a.s. was incorporated to provide overhauls of engines for L-59 aircraft and it has been
successfully performing the mentioned task. By broadening the portfolio of production and maintenance resources of the
group, Aero supports current L-59 customers and opens the way for further development of the company in the military
sphere (servicing, maintenance, and repairs).
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KC-390 programme
is one of two risk-sharing
programmes of Aero.
The first prototype
of the aircraft was
introduced in October 2014.

WING
KC-390

Aero and Brazilian company Embraer, the third biggest
aerospace manufacturer in the world, signed a contract
to become partners in developing and manufacturing of new
multi-purpose military transport aircraft.
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WING
aero celebrated its 95th anniVersary in 2014,
ranKing it among the world’s oldest
manufacturers of aViation technology

History of Aero

Beginnings

The Jet Age

Aero was founded on 25th February 1919 with its administrative seated in Prague’s Old Town and its production plant located
in Prague-Bubeneč. Aero celebrated its 95th anniversary in 2014, ranking it among the world’s oldest manufacturers of aviation
technology. From the very beginning, Aero focused on development and production of aircraft and aircraft parts, as well
as aircraft repairs. As early as 1919, Aero launched its first in-house produced aircraft, the Aero A-1. Soon, the Ministry
of Defence ordered mass production of the aircraft. Designed for military pilot training, Aero A-1 foresaw what would
become a typical product of the company in the distant future.

In 1953, new facilities designed entirely for jet aircraft production were built in Vodochody and started operation in the
same year. The production, in which several Czechoslovak aviation plants were involved, focused on a large-scale series
production of MiG-15 aircraft built under a license and its derivatives. The supersonic MiG-19 and MiG-21 aircraft were
manufactured by Aero throughout the 1960s and 1970s, paving the way in production capabilities to indigenous jet trainer
programmes - the L-29 Delfin and the L-39 Albatros.

Expansion
More powerful training aircraft types followed, and after production had been moved to new facilities in the Prague district
of Vysočany, the basis for a new family of reconnaissance, bomber and training biplanes was laid down by the Aero A-11
and A-12. Military pilots soon became famous for breaking records and winning races in Aero aircraft. Aero, at that time
a private enterprise owned by Dr. Vladimir Kabeš, became the main contractor for the Ministry of Defence and the Ministry
of Public Works (civil aviation).
The first foreign customers soon followed suit, starting with Finland. Between the two world wars, Aero achieved a number
of Czechoslovak firsts: it built a prototype of the first indigenous fighter airplane, designed the first dedicated cabin
transport aircraft, the first twin-engine aircraft, the first seaplane with indigenously designed floats, introduced a braced
high-wing monoplane, and also pioneered a practical design of a wooden cantilever wing structure.

War Production
The enhanced capabilities of the company were fully utilised and later developed during the German occupation, when
Aero produced stressed-skin semi-monocoque structures with full jigging for reconnaissance and training missions (FockeWulf Fw 189 and Siebel Si 204). Immediately after the war ended, the nationalised Aero continued in the production and
repairs of aircraft. Modified German aircraft types were manufactured for the Czechoslovak Air Force as well as civil
aviation. Shortly after the war, a new remarkable indigenous type had been introduced - the high-performance, twin-engine,
all-metal Aero 45 four-seater.
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Indigenous Jet Trainers
In the second half of the 1950s, the need for jet trainer aircraft became more and more urgent. Concentrated efforts in developing an optimized airframe and indigenous jet engine within the Czechoslovak aircraft industry resulted in the maiden
flight of the L-29 in 1959. The definitive step on Aero’s way to mass production of jet trainers took place in the summer
of 1961 near Moscow: the L-29 Delfin won comparative testing of three different prototypes and was declared the most
suitable trainer in Eastern Bloc countries. Production and deliveries continued smoothly for the ten following years, after
which the second generation, a more powerful and more efficient L-39 had been developed. Production of the L-39 occupied
Aero’s workshops and assembly halls during 1970s and 1980s. A number of air forces around the world still utilise the
excellent tutoring quality of this affordable airplane.
The L-39 Albatros family expanded considerably in the course of time, forming a perfect basis for further development. The
advent of 1990s brought incorporation of western avionics and standards as well as the use of more powerful American
engines and global equipment, and with it a start of a new chapter in the life of the company. The L-159 Combat & Training
System includes the L-159 advanced training and light combat aircraft, integrated logistic support, mission planning and
debriefing, and a ground-based training system.

Modern History
In 2000, Aero set off in a new direction and entered into its first cooperation programme - the entire S-76 helicopter ready
for installation of dynamic parts for the American company Sikorsky Aircraft Corporation. As of January 4, 2007, the private
equity group Penta became a sole shareholder of Aero and in the same year successfully finished its restructuring process.
Aero has opened its doors to the global market and has begun acquiring additional cooperation programmes, including the
first risk-sharing programme. The company has thus become a top-class partner of leading aerospace manufacturers.

WING
1919-1999

Aero in data

1919


1921

Aero – továrna létadel (Aero – aircraft
factory) founded in Prague
A-1, first military
aircraft designed
and built by Aero

A-10, first civilian airliner



1923

A-11, family of military biplanes
(bomber and reconnaissance aircraft)

De Havilland DH-50, passenger aircraft
built under British license



1929

A-100, family of military biplanes
(bomber and reconnaissance aircraft)



1937

MB-200, all-metal bomber aircraft
manufactured under French license
(Marcel Bloch)
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1953

1938

A-304, twin-engine low-wing military
aircraft

1954



A-300, twin-engine low-wing bomber
aircraft



1939

C4/C-104 (Bucker Bu-131 Jungmann)
training and aerobatic biplane

1958

1943


Ae-45, twin-engine civil aircraft


C-3 (Siebel Si-204D), twin-engine
military aircraft

1959


1962


Aero moved from Prague to a new plant
in Vodochody




A-34 “Blackbird”, first in the line of light
sports and training
biplanes

1947






1925

1932

1968

Maiden flight of MiG-21 Fishbed,
supersonic fighter aircraft produced
under Soviet license (194 aircraft
supplied from
1962 to 1972)

Maiden flight of in-house designed and
constructed jet trainer L-39 Albatros
(more than 2,900 aircraft supplied
from 1971 to 1999)


Maiden flight of MiG-15, jet fighter
aircraft produced under Soviet
license (3,405 aircraft supplied from
1954 to 1962)

1986


Maiden flight of MiG-19 Farmer,
supersonic fighter aircraft produced
under Soviet license (103 aircraft
supplied from
1958 to 1962)

1997

Maiden flight of L-29 Delfín, first jet
trainer designed in Czechoslovakia
(3,500 aircraft supplied from
1963 to 1974)

1998





Maiden flight of in-house designed and
constructed jet trainer L-39MS
– exported as L-59 Super Albatros
(60 aircraft supplied from
1992 to 1996)

Maiden flight of single-seat light combat
aircraft L-159 ALCA (72 aircraft ordered
by the Czech Air Force)
Starting a joint-enterprise with Taiwanese AIDC to develop
and produce Ae270 civil aircraft
Boeing enters Aero
(acquiring 35% of shares)

WING
2000-2014

Aero in data

2000

First L-159 supplied to the Czech Air Force
Start of production of passenger door
polished skins for Boeing 757

2005

Aero signed a long-term frame agreement
regarding post-warranty support of the
L-159 squadron

Start of production of S-76 helicopter
for Sikorsky Aircraft Corporation




Start of production of F-18 Super Hornet
gun bay door for Boeing St. Louis
Start of production of sets of parts
and subassemblies of Boeing 767 for BAE
SYSTEMS (currently Spirit AeroSystems)



2002

Maiden flight of L-159B two-seat
advanced training aircraft

2006

2007

2009
Ae270 aircraft obtained an FAA Type
Certificate

Aero increased the registered capital
of AERO Vodochody, a.s., by in-kind
contribution
Aero acquired Rotortech Aero Composites
Limited by purchase



2012

First international risk-sharing project
agreement signed with Belgian SoNACA

Dissolution of joint-enterprise with AIDC



Penta bought the British Rotortech
Composites Ltd.

2010

Start of production of centre wing box
of C-27J Spartan for Alenia Aeronautica

2013
Transfer of production from Technometra
Radotín a.s. completed



Alenia Aermacchi chose Aero
to supply Airbus A321 14A section
fuselage panels

Black Hawk UH-60M cockpit production
agreement signed with Sikorsky



2014


PZL Mielec chose Aero to supply
international version of Black Hawk
S-70i helicopter cockpits



Aero acquired by Penta private equity
group
L-159T1 advanced trainers supplied
to the Czech Air Force

Aero partnered with Embraer to develop,
design and produce KC-390 aircraft. Aero
is responsible for design and production
of wing leading edge, technological
development and production of all seven
doors, ramp and rear fuselage
Aero extended Messier-Bugatti-Dowty
contract by adding production of Airbus
A320 landing gear



Boeing withdraws
from Aero
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2011

Aero signed a contract with SAAB
to produce JAS-39 Gripen pylons



Supply of L-159 aircraft for the Czech
Air Force completed



Start of production of door subassemblies
of Embraer 170/190 for Latecoere

Aero acquired Clarex Investments a.s.
by purchase



2004

2008

Czech government announces the plan
to privatize Aero

Maiden flight of first Ae270 prototype

2001

Ae270 aircraft obtained an EASA Type
Certificate

Start of development of L-39NG, new
generation of legendary L-39 aircraft
Aero partnered
with Draken
International

WING
L-159

L-159 aircraft mates Aero’s long-term experience
in development and production of military jet aircraft,
in the category of which Aero represents historically
the largest producer in the world.
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WING
Organizational structure

LADISLAV ŠIMEK
President

DIEGo ToMAZ
Dir. Business excel.

MICHAL FLíDR
VP Finance

ToMAS VLčEK
Director HR

ZDENěK MLEJNEK
Dir. Quality assur.

PETR řEHoř
Director Strategy

DAVID PACoLA
Director Security

DIVIZE AERoSTRUCTURES

DIVIZE DEFENCE & MRo

DIVIZE oPERATIoNS

DIVIZE ENGINEERING

MoNIKA KoWALCZYKoVá
EVP Aerostructures

JAN ŠTECHR
EVP Defence & MRO

HAGEN HELM
COO

GERRARD MCCLUSKEY
VP Engineering

MICHAL KRoFTA
Director Programs

BD & Sales

VLADIMíR MüLLER
Dir. Assy operations

MICHAL KAPRáLEK
Design

JoSEF ŠoNSKý
Director BD & Sales

PETR KUDRNA
VP D&MRO Programs

JAN PRIŠKIN
Director Supply chain

ToMáŠ HIBŠ
Stress

RENATA LJUBIC
Development programs

MILoŠ TRNoBRANSKý
Director Operations

ZDENěK MLEJNEK
Dir. Quality control

MARTIN ŽALoUDíK
Configuration

DITA ŠPIčáKoVá
Contracts, sales

MARTIN CERHA
Quality control

RoMAN LAToCHA
Director Manufacturing

PAVEL LANDoVSKý
Business Development

KAREL KLíMA
Strategic Sourcing

PAVEL KoCoUR
Composites
MILAN VoKATý
Planning
JIří HUBáLEK
Manufact. engineering
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Board of directors as of 31 December 2014

Supervisory board as of 31 December 2014

chairman:
members:

chairman:
members:

Ladislav Šimek
Petr Brychta, Dominika Kalinová

Zdeněk Sýkora
Jan Borýsek, Jan Kříž

Top Management as of 31 December 2014
Ladislav Šimek
Petr Řehoř
Michal Flídr

President
Director Strategic Projects
VP Finance

Tomáš Vlček
Director Human Resources
David Pacola
Director Security
Diego Manreza Tomaz Director Business Excellence

Management of Aerostructures Division
Monika Kowalczyková
Michal Krofta
Josef Šonský
Karel Klíma

EVP Aerostructures
Director Production Programs
Director Business Development & Sales
Director Strategic Sourcing

Management of operations Division
Hagen Helm
Jan Priškin
Zdeněk Mlejnek
Roman Latocha

Chief Operations Officer
Director Supply Chain
Director Quality Assurance
Manufacturing Director

Management of Defence & MRo Division
Jan Štechr
Miloš Trnobranský
Petr Kudrna

EVP Defence& MRO
Director MRO Operations
VP Defence& MRO Programs

Management of Development, Design & Engineering Division
Gerrard McCluskey
Michal Kaprálek
Tomáš Hibš
Martin Žaloudík

VP Development Design &Engineering
Head of Design
Head of Stress
Head of Configuration

WING
Key Events of 2014

January

July

February

August

 New hall opened for the production of landing gear
 Contract signed to supply sandwich panels to Bombardier for the Global 7000/8000

 Inaugural flight of the larger version of the Bombardier CSeries - CS300 airliner

March

 Delivery of the first prototypes for the KC-390 programme

April

 Contract signed with Iraq for the sale of the L-159
 Creation of the Operations Division

May

 Contract signed with Draken International for the sale of the L-159
 Delivery of the first set of panels for the Airbus A321
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 Aero introduced the new design of the L-39NG jet trainer aircraft
 Project financing signed for the Embraer KC-390

 Delivery completed and trial operation commenced of the Broetje riveting machine
 Minister of Trade and Industry Mládek visited the Aero complex

october

 Roll out of the KC-390 aircraft
 VP of Operations Hagen Helm took up his position

December

 Number of company employees reaches 2000

WING
L-39 Aero has delivered more than 2,900 units of several
versions of this successful jet trainer. In 2015, Aero plans
to introduce a new generation of this aircraft - L-39NG.
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WING
the aerostructures diVision seeKs
a long-term balance between
risK-sharing and production programs

Report on business activities

Aerostructures Division

Programmes of the Aerostructures Division

The Aerostructures Division’s development strategy focuses on three key areas: aircraft assemblies, landing gears,
and composites.

Sikorsky S-76

The division seeks a long-term balance between development (risk-sharing) and production programmes. In accordance
with its strategy, Aero’s engineering capabilities undergo constant development, which was supported in 2012 by splitting
off Design and Engineering as an independent division.

Key Events for the Aerostructures Division in 2014
• Aero was selected by Bombardier Aerospace as a supplier of fuel tank panels for the Global 7000/8000 family of bizjets.
• Aero’s contract with Messier-Bugatti-Dowty was renewed with an increased scope of manufacturing of landing gear
sub-assemblies for both the current version of the A320 and the A320 NEO aircraft family.
• The Sikorsky S-76D helicopter entered into service with launch customers after receiving the type certificate in 2012.
• Aero increased deliveries of the UH-60M and S-70i cockpits based on higher customer demand.
• The first prototype sets of rear fuselage II, cargo ramp, and cabin doors for the KC-390 aircraft were delivered
to Embraer. The KC-390 rolled out in October 2014, and completed its maiden flight 3 months later.

Programme Description
• Sikorsky S-76 is a successful twin-engine civil medium-category helicopter with a maximum takeoff weight of 6 tons,
designed to carry up to 12 passengers.
• Since production commenced in 1982, Sikorsky has delivered more than 800 helicopters to customers, mainly in the
United States, Canada, Europe, and the Far East.
• Aero has been manufacturing the S-76 since 2000 and to date has delivered more than 350 helicopters.
• In 2011 Aero began serial production of the S-76D version, which gradually replaced the previous model, the S-76C++.
• Since 2012 Aero has significantly ramped up production of the S-76D type, which was delivered to its first operators in December 2013.
Aero Products and Roles
• Aero produces fully assembled and equipped helicopter airframes ready for installation of dynamic parts (engines, gearbox, rotors).
• Aero has full responsibility for production and the supply chain.
• Aero produces approximately 8,000 different parts and components, including tubing and wiring harnesses.
• Aero installs avionic, hydraulic, electrical, and fuel systems and provides systems testing.
• Aero provides after-sales support.
Programme outlook
• Aero expects to deliver approximately 25 S-76D helicopters annually in the mid-term horizon.

Aero produces
the complete S-76
helicopter ready
for installation
of dynamic parts
for American customer
Sikorsky Aircraft
Corporation
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WING
the first set of prototypes of rear
fuselage ii, cargo ramp, and cabin doors
for the Kc-390 aircraft were deliVered

Report on business activities

Embraer KC-390

Bombardier CSeries

Programme Description
• A new medium-sized multi-purpose military transport aircraft, designed for cargo and personnel transport, a direct
competitor to the C-130 Hercules by Lockheed Martin.
• The project was initiated by the Brazilian Air Force.
• 28 aircraft have been ordered by the Brazilian Air Force with a commitment to partially finance their development.
• Columbia, Chile, Argentina, Portugal, and the Czech Republic have also shown interest in acquiring the aircraft.
• Aero is a strategic risk-sharing partner to Embraer.
• The aircraft rolled out in October 2014, with its first flight on February 3, 2015; the aircraft is expected to enter into
service in 2016.

Programme Description
• The Bombardier CSeries aircraft is a new single-aisle aircraft for short and medium-haul commercial traffic. Two
versions of the aircraft (CS100 and CS300) can carry between 100 and 150 passengers.
• The CSeries target is to have the lowest operating costs in its class thanks to its advanced airframe design and new
generation engines.
• Aero is a development and risk-sharing partner to the Belgian company Sonaca.
• Aero is the exclusive supplier of the wing fixed leading edges.
• The prototype first flight took place on September 16, 2013.
• The programme development schedule was affected by technical issues. The current target for certification is end of 2015.

Aero Products and Roles
• Aero is fully responsible for the development, industrialization, certification support, and production of wing fixed leading edges.
• Aero is fully responsible for industrialization and production of all doors, the cargo ramp, and the rear fuselage II.

Aero Products and Roles
• Aero produces fully assembled and equipped fixed parts of the wing fixed leading edge (FLE) ready for installation on the aircraft.
• Aero is responsible for the design, industrialization, certification, and production.

Programme outlook
• After the programme ramp-up, Aero expects a delivery rate of 18 to 21 shipsets per year.
• Embraer recorded interest in 60 aircraft units in 2014.

Programme outlook
• By the end of 2014, Bombardier recorded 243 binding orders: 88 commitments, 202 options, and 23 purchase rights.
• Between 2012-2014, Aero delivered 12 FLEs configured for CS100 aircraft and 2 FLEs configured for CS300 aircraft
as per customer requests.
• From 2015 the production of serial shipsets will be continuously ramped up to support the entry into service target
and to cover market demand.

Aero signed contract
with Brazilian company
Embraer for design,
development and
production of sections
of new multipurpose
military transport
aircraft KC-390.
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At the Paris Airshow
in June 2009 Aero signed
its historically first
risk-sharing contract
for design, development
and manufacturing
of the Wing Fixed
Leading Edges for a new
and innovative CSeries
Aircraft for the Canadian
aerospace manufacturer
Bombardier.

WING
aero increased deliVeries
of the uh-60m and s-70i cocKpits
based on higher customer demand
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Sikorsky UH-60M and S-70i Black Hawk

Alenia C-27J Spartan

Programme Description
• Sikorsky S-70 and UH-60 helicopter series are currently the most common types of military transport helicopter.
• The UH-60M is the latest version and is used by the U.S. armed forces and by a number of other countries through
US government Foreign Military Sales; the S-70i is the export version.
• The contract between Aero and Sikorsky for the UH-60M cockpit was concluded in 2010 as a dual source contract;
the first cockpit was delivered in June 2011. In 2014 Aero delivered 51 cockpits.
• Aero supplies cockpits to Sikorsky PZL Mielec in Poland for the international version of the Black Hawk, the S-70i.
• The programme has a stable long-term outlook.
• Aero provided SAC a quotation for the Multi-year 9 contract for years 2018–2023.

Programme Description
• The Alenia C-27J is a military tactical transport aircraft with a maximum payload of 11.5 tons.
• The primary users of the aircraft are the United States Air Force as well as the countries of Central and Eastern Europe.
• Since 2007 Aero has been the sole supplier of the center wing box, which is a critical structural and system unit of the
aircraft.
• Aero delivered 5 center wing box units in 2014.

Aero Products and Roles
• Aero delivers a fully equipped cockpit for the UH-60M and S-70i helicopters.
• Aero manufactures parts and assembles the cockpit, including installation of electrical harnesses and flight safety parts.
Programme outlook
• The long-term forecast for the UH-60M program is the production of 1,360 helicopters by 2026 to fulfill U.S. Armed
Forces requirements (excluding exports).
• Approximately 500 UH-60M units have been delivered to date.
• Aero’s goal is to maintain a 50% market share.

Aero manufactures
cockpits for two models
of Black Hawk helicopter.
It deliveres cockpits
for UH-60M to Sikorsky
Aircraft Corporation
and for S-70i to Polish
company PZL Mielec,
part of SAC concern.
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Aero Products and Roles
• Aero produces a fully assembled, equipped and tested center wing box ready for installation on the aircraft.
• Aero is fully responsible for production, including supply chain management, and for after sales support.
• The center wing box assembly includes integral tanks, pylons for engine installation, mechanical systems of wing,
fuel and hydraulic lines, and electrical harnesses. All systems are tested by Aero.
Programme outlook
• 350 C-27J aircraft units are expected to be sold worldwide over the next ten years.
• In 2013 Australia signed a contract for 10 aircraft for the Australian Air Force, and more campaigns are in progress.
• Aero expects to deliver approximately 6 shipsets annually in upcoming years

Aero participates
on the production
of the C-27J Spartan
military transport aircraft.
For its Italian customer,
Alenia Aermacchi,
Aero produces the
complete center wing
box ready for installation
onto the aircraft.

WING
aero produces landing
gears for all its own training
and combat aircraft
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Alenia A321 14A Section Panels

Landing Gear Production

Programme Description
• The Airbus A321 is a stretched derivative of the standard A320. It is the largest of the A320 family delivered by Airbus to
numerous airlines.
• The contract with Alenia Aermacchi for 14A section panels was signed in 2012; Aero is the dual source supplier.

Programme Description
• Aero is the OEM manufacturer of landing gears for small aircraft and the supplier of components for landing gears for large
transport aircraft.
• Aero designs and manufactures landing gears for the Czech company Aircraft Industries for their twin-engine L-410 Turbolet
turboprop transport aircraft for 19 passengers.
• Since 2010, Aero has delivered sub-assemblies to Messier-Bugatti-Dowty for the landing gears of the Airbus A320 family
(A318/319/320) of single-aisle medium-range aircraft, currently the best-selling aircraft family.
• Aero produces landing gears for all its own training and combat aircraft.

Aero’s Products and Roles
• Aero assembles four panels of section 14A: the left and right side panels, the crown, and the bottom panel.
• Aero is fully responsible for the production and supply chain.
• Aero will introduce automatic panel riveting in 2015.
• Aero is responsible for after sales support.
Programme outlook
• Market demand for the A321 aircraft has been growing over the several past years; current aircraft backlog will ensure
stable delivery volumes in upcoming years.
• Aero expects to deliver 35 shipsets in 2015 with further ramp-up in 2016.

Aero Products and Roles
• Aero supplies landing gear sub-assemblies for the Airbus A320 aircraft to Messier-Bugatti-Dowty, the world's leading
manufacturer of landing gear systems.
• Aero produces complete nose and main landing gears for the L-410 Turbolet.
• Aero is the type certificate holder for the landing gears of all in-house aircraft production (the L-39/59/159 and Ae-270).
Programme outlook
• Aero expects a gradual increase of production for Messier-Bugatti-Dowty in accordance with the ongoing market demand
for the A320 aircraft family, and in connection with expansion of its current scope of work.
• In upcoming years, Aero expects to deliver approximately 21 shipsets per year for L-410 aircraft.

The A320 aircraft family
is currently the fastest
selling aircraft
in the world. Aero
participates in production
of these aircraft
in several programmes.
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Aero produces complete
nose and main landing
gears for the L-410
Turbolet of Aircraft
Industries company.

WING
Report on business activities

engineering diVision helps
aero to become a strong partner
of Key aerospace manufacturers

other Programmes

Engineering Division

Embraer 170/190

During 2013, the engineering department became a separate division offering a comprehensive integrated portfolio
of services in the area of aerospace structures development. This step is a continuation of the strategic intention of Aero
to become a strong partner of key aerospace manufacturers not only in the area of production but also in development.

• With more than 1,100 aircraft produced, the E-Jets family is one of the most commercially successful series, operating
primarily as regional aircraft.
• Aero has been a partner of Latecoere since 2007 as well as the single source supplier of hinges and internal structures of all doors.
• In 2014 Aero started the bidding process for a new generation of E-Jets family, the E2.
• Aero’s first delivery for the E2 is scheduled for mid-2015, and the first flight of the E2 aircraft for 2016.
• The three versions of the second generation E-Jets will become operational in 2018-2020.

F/A-18 Super Hornet
• Dual source supplier of the gun bay door for F/A-18 Super Hornet aircraft.
• Deliveries began in 2001.
• 500th unit was delivered in May 2013

Creation of a separate division provides long-term development of not only capabilities and experience in the area
of design, but it has also initiated independent commercial activities of the engineering division with pure engineering
development packages where focused growth will be made.
Tasks of the Engineering Division include:
• Development of engineering solutions for risk-sharing programs, such as development of aircraft structures within
the international development programs that are subsequently manufactured by the Aerostructures Division
• Configuration control: end-to-end with full documentation management
• Production support services across all Aero projects
• Independent engineering services with external clients for development of structural work packages, on-site consulting,
certification support, and other.
Key capabilities of the Engineering Division:
• Concept & Detailed Design
• Analysis
• Testing
• Certification
• Production Support
• Liaison Office
• Technical Publications
• Tooling Design

Aero participates
in production of F/A-18E/F
Super Hornet aircraft.
It supplies gun bay doors
to its American customer,
Boeing St. Louise.

40, 41 | Annual report of AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s.

WING
aero is capable of realizing
comprehensiVe deVelopment
of the aircraft, including certification
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Current Programmes of the Engineering Division
Bombardier CSeries – international risk-sharing program
Customer: SONACA a.s.
Aero Role: Development and manufacturing of the transportation aircraft wing fixed leading edge
Status: Running (since 2009)
Embraer KC-390 – international risk-sharing program
Customer: Embraer a.s.
Aero Role: Development and manufacturing of the military transportation aircraft wing fixed leading edge. Manufacturing
of cargo ramp, fuselage tail part, all doors for the military transport aircraft.
Status: Running (since 2011)
Embraer KC-390 – Engineering Services
Customer: Embraer a.s.
Aero Role: Development of the military transportation aircraft FTI equipment & installations; wing to fuselage fairings.
Status: Running (since 2013)

Development of composite aileron for the L-39 aircraft
Customer: Defence & MRO Division
Task: Development of a composite aileron for the L-39 aircraft with the objective to extend the service life compared
to the ordinary structure.
Status: Completed in 2013
Key references
The Engineering Division fully follows the experience of Aero from the development of own products. Aero is capable
of realizing comprehensive development of the aircraft, including certification.
Complete development of military aircraft
• L-39 Albatros
• L-59 Super Albatros
• L-159 A/B
• Ae-270 Ibis: Development and certification (obtained in 2005) of single-engine turbo-prop transport aircraft.

Tecnam P2012 – Engineering Services
Customer: Tecnam a.s.
Aero Role: Development, prototyping, testing and certification of the nose and main landing gears
Status: Running (since 2014)
Aero Programs – Engineering Services
Customer: Aerostructures Division
Aero Role: Support services across all programs in the form of industrial engineering, production support and configuration
control services.
Status: Running (since 2013)
Aero Ae-270 Ibis
is a single-engine
transport aircraft with
a capacity for 8 passengers
and produced in
a consortium with IBIS
Aerospace Ltd.
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Report on business activities

Defence & MRo Division
In 2014, the Division’s activities consisted primarily of supporting the L-159 aircraft operated by the Czech Air Force as
a part of a Follow On Support and Services contract (FOSS), which comprised supply of spare parts and consumables,
repairs, technical consulting, and improvements to the maintenance system. Aero also continued with its programme
of upgrading the L-159's functions – in 2014, the company successfully completed production of a new wing with an integral
fuel tank, increasing the fuel storage capacity of the L-159 and considerably increasing its flight range.
In April 2014, the company signed a contract for the supply of twelve L-159 aircraft owned by the Ministry of Defence of the
Czech Republic to the Iraqi Air Force, and another contract for the supply of eighteen L-159 aircraft owned by the MD CZ
to the American company Draken was signed in July 2014. The aircraft will be used for tactical flight training of US Air Force pilots.
The division further focused on supporting the L-59 aircraft in Tunisia - it successfully performed overhauls and subsequent
supply of overhauled DV-2 jet engines. The company has signed a FOSS (Follow On Support and Services) contract for 2014
and it continues with fulfillment of a contract for the overhaul of six L-59 aircraft which was signed in January 2013.
The division also actively supports its customers operating L-39 aircraft. Performance of the contracts in Algeria continued
(aircraft service life extension and supply of spare parts) together with the overhaul of L-39 aircraft according to the contract executed in February 2013. The overhaul of L-39ZA aircraft in Bulgaria is in progress, and a contract for another aircraft was signed in December 2014.
In order to increase the quality of training on L-39 aircraft, the division is working together with SPEEL Praha on the
development of a head-up display (HUD) suitable for use in L-39 aircraft. The system went through a series of demanding
trials and flight tests in 2014 and is ready for serial production. In order to satisfy the needs of our customers, Aero has
established cooperation regarding development of a new engine for L-39 aircraft with the US company Williams. In 2015,
this programme will result in an installation kit enabling Williams FJ-44M engines to be installed into the existing L-39
aircraft to replace their current AI-25TL engines. The L-39 with FJ-44M engines will have not only better performance
characteristics but will also operate more efficiently thanks to the FJ-44M’s lower fuel consumption.
As regards satisfying the future training demands of our customers, the division started work on a new generation
aircraft, the L-39NG, with the aim of offering a modern trainer aircraft with a low acquisition price and improved flight
characteristics while keeping up its tradition of simple maintenance. Under the authorization to carry out custom
modifications of civil aircraft, the division installed dozens of EFB (Electronic Flight Bag) systems. This is an electronic
information system that assists the crew with flight management, primarily on A320 and A330 aircraft.
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we continue in upgrading the l-159's
functions – in 2014, aero successfully
completed production of a new wing
with an integral fuel tanK

Events Expected in 2015:
• Completion of the overhaul of the second half of the seventeen L-39 aircraft in Algeria
• Execution of an amendment on the overhaul of two more L-59 aircraft in Tunisia
• Contract negotiations for the supply of spare parts and upgrade of aircraft in Vietnam
• Receipt of an order for the repair of two last aircraft in Bulgaria
• Completion of the L-39 aircraft redesign for the Williams FJ-44M jet engine and flight test commencement
• Continuation of work on the L-39 NG (Next Generation) project
• Initiating negotiations with the Ministry of Defence of the Czech Republic regarding the PP2000 of L-159T1 aircraft
• Execution of contract on the overhauls of six to eight L-39 aircraft
Defence & MRo Division Programs
Support for L-159 Aircraft Serving in the Czech Air Force
• Performance of the FOSS contract – the subject of the contract comprises the supply of spare parts and consumables,
repairs, technical consulting, and maintenance system improvement
• Commencement of PP2000 works on L-159T1 aircraft
Support for L-159 Aircraft Serving Abroad
• Aircraft repairs, supply of logistic equipment as a part of aircraft sale to Iraq
• Aircraft repairs, supply of logistic equipment as a part of aircraft sale to Draken
Support for L-59 Aircraft in Tunisia
• Supply of overhauled jet engines
• Performance of the FOSS contract for 2014
• Performance of the contract on overhaul of six L-59 aircraft
Support for Customers and L-39 Aircraft
• Performance of the contract on overhaul of 17 aircraft from Algeria
• Performance of contract on L-39 aircraft' service life extension at Slovakia
• Performance of contract on L-39 overhaul in Bulgaria
• Performance of the FOSS contract on L-39 operation support in the Czech Air Force
Development Projects
• Work on Williams FJ-44M jet engine installation into L-39 aircraft
• Work on designing the L-39NG
• Upgrades for L-159 aimed at increasing its utility and combat value

WING
CSeries CS110/CS130

CS300 is typically made with 130 seats; in configuration
with narrow aisle the capacity can be increased
to 145 seats.
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WING
the aerostructures diVision
contributed 75.6%
to total reVenues

Financial results of the company

In 2014 Aero continued its trend of reporting positive results, which started in 2007 when the company was acquired by the
Penta Group. In 2014 Aero generated a net profit of CZK 226.5 million. As at 31 December 2014, the balance sheet total was
CZK 5,686.8 million. The company’s equity attained a level of CZK 1,442.2 million, resulting in an equity ratio of 25.4%.

Sales
Aero generated revenues of CZK 4,076.8 over the course of 2014. The primary source of revenues was the sale of own
products and services, which amounted to CZK 3,809.8 million. Aero earned CZK 119.3 million on sales of goods. Revenues
for materials and assets sold amounted to CZK 147.7 million, of which assets sold to leaseback transactions accounted
for CZK 109.7 million. Revenue growth was positively affected by exchange rates. In 2014, Aero exported products, goods,
and services valued at CZK 3,525.6 million.
The Aerostructures Division contributed 75.6% to total revenues. The division’s revenues were crucially affected by the
production for Sikorsky, which remains a key customer of the company. Deliveries for the KC-390 programme were a new
contribution to division revenues. In coming years, further division revenue diversification is expected thanks to growth
in deliveries for the KC-390, A321, and CS 100/300 aircraft.
Defence & MRO Division revenues increased by CZK 249.5 million over the previous year. Contracts for the GO L-39 for
the Algerian and Bulgarian Ministries of Defence and a contract for the GO L-59 for the Turkish Ministry of Defence
contributed significantly to the division’s growth in turnover. The division contributed 20.6% to total revenues.
The remaining divisions contributed 3.8% to company revenues.
.

Profits
Aero reported an after-tax profit of CZK 226.6 million in 2014 consisting of CZK 504.6 million in operating profit, decreased
by a financial loss of CZK 278.8 million, and increased by CZK 0.7 million in extraordinary profit.
In 2014, Aero achieved an operating profit of CZK 504.6 million, reflecting a year-on-year increase of CZK 65.3 million,
or 14.9%. The decrease in the orders for the S-76 helicopter was successfully offset by the profit from the other programmes.
The results from operations also reflected the savings that were achieved through the implementation of the WING system.
The company’s net loss from financial activities totalled CZK 278.8 million. The results were negatively affected by the
weakening of the Czech crown in relation to the US dollar and the euro. In 2014, Aero reported an exchange rate loss
of CZK 208.9 million from the revaluation of foreign currency loans, which was only very partially offset by an exchange rate
gain of CZK 7.4 million resulting from the revaluation of other entries. Interest expense for the year totalled CZK 45.3
million in 2014 and Aero earned CZK 3.9 million in interest income from loans provided and interest-bearing accounts.
The costs for bank fees and loan insurance reached a level of CZK 15.4 million. Aero incurred a loss of CZK 20.5 from
financial derivative contracts.

Asset Structure
As at 31 December 2014 the company disclosed assets totalling CZK 5,686.6 million. This reflects an increase of CZK
1,159.2 million as compared to the end of 2013.
Fixed assets were reported at a value of CZK 1,886.2 as at 31 December 2014. Due to increased investment, fixed assets
increased year-on-year by 19.6%, with all asset entries contributing to this growth.
Aero reported current assets of CZK 3,534.7 million, a figure corresponding to 62.2% of the balance sheet total. The yearon-year increase in current assets is connected with the increase in materials inventory and the stage of preparations
for the new production programmes for the A321, Sonaca and KC-390 projects, and the S-76 production programme prior
to the end of 2014. Accruals and deferrals contributed a share equal to 4.7% of total assets.
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Financial results of the company

aero decided to inVest czK 152 million
in the machining process and the subsequent
processing of waste chips in 2014

Financial Standing

Investments, Development Programmes, and Research & Development

As at 31 December 2014, Aero’s equity covered 25.4% of the company’s assets. As compared to the previous year, this
reflects a decrease of CZK 165.7 million. This drop in equity resulted primarily from the dividend payouts for 2012 and 2013.

Aero’s investment and development activities proceeded in accordance with the company’s long-term strategic plan. In 2014
the company continued with its investment in the KC-390 and Sonaca projects and initiated the investment activities associated
with its new manufacturing programme for composite parts. In addition, the preparatory tasks for the development of the
L-39NG jet trainer aircraft were started during the year.

External sources reached a level of CZK 4,080.4 as at 31 December 2014, which corresponds to 62.9% of equity. The main
financing sources are bank loans and leases totalling 2,844.7 million, reflecting a year-on-year increase of CZK 1,277.9
million. This greater level of indebtedness was caused by the new loans obtained for the development costs for the KC-390
and the machining centres, and also due to the use of previously contracted credit and the weakening of the Czech crown
in relation to the US dollar.
As at 31 December 2014 Aero had payables of CZK 588.2 million due to suppliers. This reflects a reduction of CZK 8.1
million as compared to the previous year.
Accruals and deferrals contributed a share equal to 2.9% of total liabilities.

.
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A new Integrated Panel Assembly Cell (IPAC) CNC automatic riveting machine was brought into operation in conjunction with
the start of the mass production of panels for the A321. In the future it will also be used to produce parts for the KC-390
aircraft. In order to ensure the problem-free production of the wing leading edges for the CS100 and CS300 aircraft, the
company’s management decided to establish a second assembly line for the leading edges. In connection with the launch
of the production of the KC-390 and Sonaca, a decision was made in 2014 to invest CZK 152 million in the machining
process and the subsequent processing of waste chips. As a result, a Makino 5-axis machining centre was purchased prior
to the end of 2014. The year 2015 will see the delivery of a 5-axis pallet CNC horizontal milling centre, capable of machining
parts up to 7.5 m in length. At the same time, a new system for processing the waste from the milling process will be developed. This investment will guarantee not only fast and accurate machining, but will also improve the way in which the waste
from the mechanical machining process is handled. Other quite large investments were focused on modernising the
company’s existing machinery and processes with the objective of ensuring Aero’s competitiveness in the coming years.
Aero successfully obtained support from EU funds for financing its development activities. For developing the components
for the KC-390 multi-purpose military transport aircraft, a project with an estimated cost of CZK 1.2 billion, the company
received a subsidy of CZK 123 million under the TIP programme. In 2012, Aero’s application for a subsidy from the European
funds under the POTENTIAL programme was approved for investment in expanding the development laboratory for the
production of advanced aircraft components. The approved subsidy amount totals CZK 99.5 million. Of this amount, Aero
received CZK 60.4 million in 2014 and the remainder will be disbursed some time in 2015. In conjunction with the start
of the mass production of the fixed wing leading edges for the Bombardier CS100 and CS300 aircraft, Aero obtained a CZK
50 million subsidy from European funds under the INNOVATION programme to establish the workplace. Funds from this
subsidy will be drawn in 2015 and will partially cover the costs for the second assembly line for the wing leading edges
for CS100 and CS300 aircraft and the purchase of the machinery required for manufacturing this aircraft series.

WING
Financial results of the company

aero is a nadcap certificates
holder for four special processes

Human Resources

Integrated Management System (IMS)

The trend of considerable growth of the number of employees continued in 2014. In the area of human resources management, the company thus focused in particular on new recruitment and on the related adaptation programme, including
establishment of necessary training facilities. The company also intensified its collaboration with secondary technical
schools and universities by offering fellowship programmes for students. The company received a second place award
in the prestigious Sodexo Employer of the Region competition for the Central Bohemian Region.

In 2014 there were no significant changes made directly in the IMS of AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. The quality system
is still based on the requirements of ISO 9001:2008, AS 9100C, ISO 14001:2004, OHSAS 18001:2007, BS 25999-2:2007, ISO
27001:2005, AQAP 2110 (ČOS 051655), EASA Part21 sub J, EASA Part 21 sub G, EASA Part145 and EASA Part147.

AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. also actively collaborates with aviation industry representatives and educational institutions
with the goal of developing educational programmes suitable for the aviation industry. Development of education
programmes and efficient satisfaction of demand for qualified workforce are among the main priorities of the Confederation
of the Czech Aviation Industry, an organization founded by AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. together with eight other
aviation manufacturers in June 2011.
The average number of employees at Aero in 2014 was 1,848 (1,938 including agency employees) and the total number
of employees as of 31 December 2014 reached 1,937 (2,024 including agency employees). Over 481 new employees were hired
for qualified labourer and technical positions designated for the preparation and implementation of both existing and new
production programmes. 242 employees left the company. The company plans to create 268 new job openings in 2015.
Total fluctuation in 2014 was 13%, which is 4.8% more than in 2013.
Average gross salary was CZK 34,237.
Aero spent CZK 7,400,000 in total on employee education. The development costs per employee thus amounted to CZK
4,004 in 2014.

Aero is also a NADCAP certificates holder for the following special processes:
• CP (Chemical Processing), since 2008
• HT (Heat Treating), since 2008
• NDT (Non-Destructive Testing), since 2009
• NADCAP COM (Composites), since 2013
In the summer of 2012, the ISMS implementation project began. Final certification was successfully completed in May 2014
and the certificate was issued in June 2014.
The primary IMS documents are maintained by the Quality Assurance Director. The management representative for IMS
reports directly to the CEO of Aero and is organizationally independent of creation of design, production documentation,
production, and product sales. This organizational freedom gives it the authority to resolve matters related to IMS.
Compliance with the above-mentioned standards had been verified by inspection visits held by authorities.
Substantial changes have been made in the management organizational chart, but with no direct impact on organization.
There were other personnel changes on the management team. The management team was reinforced with:
• Director for Parts Production – Mr. Roman Latocha
• COO – Mr. Hagen Helm
Major changes in the Aero organizational chart will have a positive influence on the perception and authority of the
Integrated Management System, and the revival can be felt in other processes and departments as well.
From the perspective of IMS, 2014 was a very successful year. Aero completed 3 recertification/renewal audits and the new
ISMS system was fully certified according to ISO 27001. Three certificates were re-issued for the next period and new
certificates were issued (see below). From the perspective of production nonconformities, 2014 was above average due
to a higher number of newly implemented production and development programmes. The increasing trend of product
nonconformities during the year led to more intensive training of the company’s personnel (not only in production) in the
methods for identifying the root causes of nonconformities and efficient definition of remedial measures.
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WING
aero expects introduction
of the remotorised l-39 in 2015

Financial results of the company

Environment

Significant Events after the Balance Sheet Date

In 2014, Aero discharged 5.68 tons of emissions into the atmosphere (of that 5.17 tons of volatile organic compounds,
0.37 tons of nitrogen oxides and 0.1 tons of solid particles). The paint shop was the largest source of emissions. Measurements
of all sources showed that emission limits were met in 2014. No air pollution fee was imposed for 2014.

January: At the Exporter of the Year awards, Aero earned second place in the category Export Increases
February: The KC-390 aircraft successfully completed its inaugural flight
June: Commencement of the second development phase of the L-39NG

In 2014, Aero produced 1,744 tons of waste, including 820 tons of hazardous waste. The amount of CZK 1,679,387 was spent
on waste disposal.

Expected Developments:

Aero drew 95,700 thousand m3 of underground water in 2014 (of that 89,300 m3 for industrial technology) and produced
80,700 m3 of waste water. The fees for underground water consumption amounted to CZK 280,732. Fees charged for waste
water discharge amounted to CZK 16,565, including CZK 16,565 for the discharged pollution and CZK 0 for the volume
of the waste water.
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•
•
•
•
•

Introduction of the remotorised L-39
Delivery of the new Sherman pallet machining centre
Commencement of delivery of L-159 aircraft for Draken International
First delivery of L-159 aircraft for the Iraqi Air Force
Commencement of the reconstruction of the hangar for storing L-159 aircraft in the manufacturing facilities

WING

Integrated management
system WING

improVement suggestions filed
by employees generated total saVings
of czK 3,746,448

Through implementation and subsequent development of the WING system, Aero wants:
For its customers
• to create a management standard containing convincing guarantees allowing us to maintain the position of a top
supplier in the long-term.

Cornerstones
Contain the most important approaches supporting Aero management. Guarantors manage the methodology of the
individual cornerstones. Champions provide training related to the development and deepening of cornerstones.
Strategic Alignment of objectives

"Lean" thinking

Effective planning

Cornerstones
For its suppliers
• to offer a framework for the creation of a responsible and efficiently built partnership.

Project Management

For its employees
• to introduce an environment where desirable and undesirable behaviour is unambiguously defined and where a transparent
and coherent relationship between the excellent performance of an individual and of the company exists simultaneously.

Structure of the WING System

Risk Management

Management of Constraints

Tools
Describe the innovative procedures for the execution and support of management activities that are applied at Aero to a greater extent.
5S

SPC

KAIZEN

TPM

SMED

VSM

Tools

The WING system consists of basic parts – principles, management cornerstones, and tools.

Quality

Proactive behavior

Positive attitude

Quality teams

Kaizen

3P

EVM

Kaizen Week

RCCA

Basic principles
Define the principles that control the behaviour and the decision-making of Aero employees.
Value

FMEA

Visual Management

What is the purpose of the WING Manual?
Time

Basic Principles
Collaboration / Teamwork

The WING Manual documents the structure of WING and introduces basic features of the individual components of the system.
It is designed to be used for basic familiarization with the system’s organization and with its status, both for the customers
and the suppliers, and for the employees of Aero. The WING manual is at the level of interpretation and the Company
Quality Manual is superior to organizational guidelines and instructions. More detailed information is included in the
standards and guidelines governing individual activities in Aero.

Saving and Activities
Value

Quality

Time
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Proactive
behavior

Positive
attitude

Collaboration
/ Teamwork

This year, a total of 31 Kaizen Week workshops were held in different areas, achieving a total savings of CZK 12,620,055.
This targeted activity is designed to improve processes and solve problems employing a multi-functional team. The WING
system also includes another tool labelled Kaizen – Minor Improvements. In total 705 improvement suggestions were filed
by employees in 2014, generating a total savings of CZK 3,746,448. Throughout 2014, knowledge and practical use of the
tools offered by the WING system was systematically strengthened. This was mainly achieved by training of Aero’s workforce – 631 employees underwent systematic training. An additional 600 employees are planned to be trained in 2015.

Confederation
of the Czech Aviation Industry

WING

The Confederation of the Czech Aviation Industry (CCAI), of which Aero is a founding member, was established on June 9,
2011 and reflects the rich history and diversity of the Czech aviation industry.

Members of CCAI as of 31 December 2014

CCAI is a network of aviation manufacturers, universities, and other institutions connected with the aerospace industry in
the Czech Republic. Core activities of CCAI members include production and integration of aerostructures; development
and production of civil aircraft engines; development, production and repair of aircraft technology, avionics and systems;
production of galleys and aircraft interiors; and the manufacture of composite and machined parts, including surface
treatments. As of 31 December 2014, CCAI consisted of twenty aircraft manufacturers, four universities, and four institutions
providing aviation training, education, and research and development services for other Confederation members. CCAI
acquired four new members in 2014.

AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s.
www.aero.cz

LOM Praha s.p.
www.lompraha.cz

ATG s.r.o.
www.atg.cz

maxmechanik s.r.o.
www.maxmechanik.eu

BEKO Engineering, spol. s.r.o.
www.beko-engineering.cz

Quittner & Schimek s.r.o.
www.qscomp.cz

Česká letecká servisní a.s.
www.ceslet.cz

Ray Service a.s.
www.rayservice.cz

Česká zbrojovka a.s.
www.czub.cz

Air Navigation Services
www.rlp.cz

Flying Academy s.r.o.
www.flyingacademy.com

Saab Czech s.r.o.
www.saabczech.cz

GE Aviation Czech s.r.o.
www.geaviation.cz

Skyleader Aircraft
www.skyleader.aero

CHARVÁT AXL, a.s.
www.axl.cz

Speel Praha s.r.o.
www.speel.cz

Jihlavan a.s.
www.jihlavan.cz

Startech s.r.o.
www.startech-ricany.cz

LA Composite, s.r.o.
www.lacomposite.com

Znojemské strojírny s.r.o.
www.strojirny.cz

Engineering Academy of the Czech Republic
www.ckto.cz/eacr/

Zodiac Galleys Europe s.r.o.
www.driessen.com

Institute of Aerospace Engineering, VUT Brno
www.lu.fme.vutbr.cz

University of Defence
www.unob.cz

Aerospace Engineering dept., CTU Praha
www3.fs.cvut.cz

University College of Business
www.vsopraha.cz

CCAI contributes to the strengthening of the competitiveness of the Czech aviation industry, carries out projects in the
areas of human resources management and aviation education, the development of supply chains, and integration
of delivery capacity. The total turnover of the 22 companies affiliated with CCAI reached CZK 13.5 billion in 2014. Total
exports by all members was CZK 10.5 billion. These two most important indicators confirm that 2014 was the year of revival in industrial production.
In comparison with the previous year, member revenues increased by a full 15%. Member exports grew by 19% to the
aforementioned CZK 10.5 billion. Together with the growth in revenue and exports, investment by individual companies
into research and development and assets also grew - member companies invested a total of CZK 2 billion in 2014, with
a year-on-year increase in investment of 87.3%. The number of employees of CCAI member companies increased by 13.1%.
In 2014, Confederation members employed 6,431 people, of which 4,777 employees were directly involved in aircraft
manufacturing, which is a percentage increase of a full 14.3% over 2013. Another positive note is the further increase
in cross sales between CCAI members, which in 2014 totalled CZK 500 million.

Lloyd’s Register Quality Assurance
Czech Republic, www.lrqa.cz
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Air Navigation Services
of the Czech Republic

Statement
of the supervisory board

In compliance with Section 447 of Act no. 90/2012 Coll., on business companies and cooperatives (Business Corporations Act)
the Supervisory Board reviewed the ordinary financial statements of AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. for the financial
period from 1. 1. 2014 to 31. 12. 2014.
Having discussed the ordinary financial statements and having examined the accompanying auditor's opinion, the Supervisory
Board recommended at its meeting on 9th July 2015 that the ordinary financial statements for the financial period from
1. 1. 2014 to 31. 12. 2014 should be approved by the General meeting of the company.
Furthermore, the Supervisory Board recommended to the General meeting that the allocation of profit generated in the
financial period from 1. 1. 2014 to 31. 12. 2014 should be approved as proposed by the Board of Directors, namely:

The profit of CZK 226 476 946,42 should be allocated as follows:
- Cover of the accumulated loss of previous years in the amount of CZK 54 679,01;
- The remaining sum of CZK 226 422 267,41 Kč to be transferred from account no. 431 “Profit/Loss in Approval Process”
to account no. 428 – Retained earnings from previous years.

In Odolena Voda on 9th July 2015

Zdeněk Sýkora
Chairman of the Supervisory Board
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WING

WING
Independent auditor’s report

Shareholders of the Company AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s.:
I. We have verified the Final Accounts of the Company AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. (hereinafter only as the
"Company") to the date of the December 31, 2014, shown on pages 66 – 95, to which we issued on the June 24, 2015
the statement of the following wording:
"We have verified the enclosed Final Accounts of the Company AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. prepared to the date of
the December 31, 2014, for the period of 12 months from the January 01, 2014 to the December 31, 2014, i.e. the Balance Sheet,
Profit and Loss Statement, Cash Flow Statement and the Annex, including a summary of major significant accounting methods.
The data about the Company AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. are shown in Section 1 of the Annex to this Final Accounts.

Responsibility of the statutory body of the accounting unit for the final accounts
The statutory body is responsible for the preparation of the Final Accounts and for the true presentation of facts in it
in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles valid in the Czech Republic and for such an internal control
system that the management deems necessary for the preparation of the Final Accounts so that it is free from significant
(material) inaccuracies caused due to a fraud or a mistake

Auditor's responsibility

Auditor's statement
In our opinion, the Final Accounts provide, in all significant relations, a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, and
the financial situation of the Company AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. as of the December 31, 2014, and its financial
performance and its cash flows for a period of 12 months from the January 01, 2014 to the December 31, 2014, in accordance
with the accounting principles valid in the Czech Republic.
II. We have also verified the concordance of the Annual Report with the above mentioned Final Accounts. The responsibility
for the correctness of the annual report lies with the responsible statutory body. Our task is to issue, based on the verification
performed, a statement about the concordance of the Annual Report with the Final Accounts.
We have performed the verification in accordance with the International Auditor Standards and related Application Clauses
of the Chamber of Auditors of the Czech Republic. These standards require that the auditor shall plan and perform the
verification to obtain reasonable level of certainty that the data contained in the Annual Report, describing the facts that
are also subject of presentation in the Final Accounts, are in all material respects concordant with the particular Final
Accounts. We have matched the financial data included in the Annual Report on pages 10 – 55 and 96 – 99 with the data
provided in the Final Accounts to the date of the December 31, 2014. We have not verified any other data than the accounting
data obtained from the Final Accounts and from the account books of the Company. We believe that the verification
performed provides an adequate basis for the expression of the Auditor's Statement.

It is our task to issue, based on the audit performed, the statement to these Final Accounts. We have performed the audit in
accordance with the Act on Auditors, International Auditor Standards, and with related application clauses of the Chamber of
Auditors of the Czech Republic. In accordance with these regulations, we are obliged to abide by ethical standards and to plan
and perform the audit so that to acquire an adequate level of certainty that the final account is free of significant inaccuracies.

In our opinion, the accounting data presented in the Annual Report are, in all material respects, in accordance with the
above-mentioned Final Accounts.

The audit comprises the execution of the auditor procedures, the objective of which is to acquire evidence data about the
amounts and facts shown in the Final Accounts. Selection of the auditor procedures depends on the discretion of the auditor,
including the way how the auditor will assess the risks that the Final Accounts contain significant inaccuracies caused by a fraud
or a mistake. When assessing these risks, the auditor shall consider the internal inspections that are relevant for the compilation of the Final Accounts and a true presentation of reality in there. The objective of the assessment of the internal inspections is to propose suitable auditor procedures and to not to give a statement to the efficiency of the internal inspections. The
audit comprises also the assessment of suitability of the accounting methods used, the adequacy of the accounting estimations
performed by the management of the Company, as well as the assessment of the overall presentation of the Final Accounts.

Ernst & Young Audit, s.r.o.
Registration No. 401

We believe that the evidence data obtained are sufficient and suitable and that they form an adequate base for the
expression of the Auditor's Statement. .
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June 24, 2015
Prague, Czech Republic

Radek Pav, statutární auditor
Registration No. 2042

WING
C-27J Spartan

The aircraft is used for a wide range of missions
from cargo transportation to logistic support of military
units and airborne unit transportation as well as for
special services, e.g. naval and electronic surveillance, search and rescue operations, or firefighting.
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WING
Financial statement
gross

current
year
allowances

net

prior year
2013
net

A.

ToTAL ASSETS
SToCK SUBSCRIPTIoN RECEIVABLE

8 332 579
0

-2 645 826

5 686 753
0

4 527 510

B.

FIXED ASSETS

4 035 547

-2 149 394

1 886 153

1 577 363

B. I.
B. I. 1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8

Intangible assets
Foundation and organization expenses
Research and development
Software
Patents, royalties and similar rights
Goodwill
Other intangible assets
Intangible assets in progress
Advances granted for intangible assets

678 282
0
0
232 842
257 845
0
1 166
186 429
0

-275 970
0
0
-215 956
-59 638
0
-376
0
0

402 312
0
0
16 886
198 207
0
790
186 429
0

323 094
0
0
10 020
200 448
0
1 791
110 835
0

B. II.
B. II. 1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9

Tangible assets
Land
Constructions
Separate movable items and groups of movable items
Perennial crops
Livestock
Other tangible assets
Tangible assets in progress
Advances granted for tangible assets
Gain or loss on revaluation of acquired property

3 356 163
16 906
1 025 252
1 867 509
0
0
13 333
388 156
45 007
0

-1 873 424
0
-538 255
-1 330 900
0
0
-3 289
-980
0
0

1 482 739
16 906
486 997
536 609
0
0
10 044
387 176
45 007
0

1 253 178
16 906
481 583
396 175
0
0
7 231
326 348
24 935
0

B. III.
B. III. 1
2
3
4
5
6
7

Financial investments
Subsidiaries
Associates
Other long-term securities and interests
Loans and borrowings to subsidiaries and associates
Other long-term investments
Long-term investments in progress
Advances granted for long-term investments

1 102
1 102
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

1 102
1 102
0
0
0
0
0
0

1 091
1 091
0
0
0
0
0
0
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gross

current
year
allowances

net

prior year
2013
net

C.

CURRENT ASSETS

4 031 173

-496 432

3 534 741

2 765 830

C. I.
C. I. 1
2
3
4
5
6

Inventory
Materials
Work in progress and semi-finished production
Finished products
Livestock
Goods
Advances granted for inventory

2 709 016
1 499 497
1 182 437
0
0
3 087
23 995

-463 928
-368 573
-86 167
0
0
0
-9 188

2 245 088
1 130 924
1 096 270
0
0
3 087
14 807

1 524 134
888 142
617 673
0
0
2 605
15 714

C. II.
C. II. 1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8

Long-term receivables
Trade receivables
Receivables from group companies with majority control
Receivables from group companies with control of 20% - 50%
Receivables from partners
Long-term advances granted
Unbilled revenue
Other receivables
Deferred tax asset

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

77 512
0
77 512
0
0
0
0
0
0

C. III.
C. III. 1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9

Short-term receivables
Trade receivables
Receivables from group companies with majority control
Receivables from group companies with control of 20% - 50%
Receivables from partners
Social security and health insurance
Due from government - tax receivables
Short-term advances granted
Unbilled revenue
Other receivables

1 027 454
905 182
70 856
0
0
0
25 371
6 892
12 485
6 668

-32 504
-28 076
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
-4 428

994 950
877 106
70 856
0
0
0
25 371
6 892
12 485
2 240

931 360
903 289
0
0
0
0
8 587
4 561
8 622
6 301

C. IV.
C. IV. 1
2
3
4

Short-term financial assets
Cash
Bank accounts
Short-term securities and interests
Short-term financial assets in progress

294 703
5 760
288 943
0
0

0
0
0
0
0

294 703
5 760
288 943
0
0

232 824
5 307
227 517
0
0

D. I.
D. I. 1
2
3

Accrued assets and deferred liabilities
Prepaid expenses
Prepaid expenses (specific-purpose expenses)
Unbilled revenue

265 859
138 027
110 155
17 677

0
0
0
0

265 859
138 027
110 155
17 677

184 317
64 089
114 217
6 011

WING
Financial statement
current
year

prior year
2013

A.

ToTAL EQUITY & LIABILITIES
EQUITY

5 686 753
1 442 242

4 527 510
1 607 979

A. I.
A. I. 1
2
3

Basic capital
Registered capital
Own shares and own ownership interests (-)
Changes in basic capital

1 002 000
1 002 000
0
0

1 002 000
1 002 000
0
0

A. II.
A II. 1
2
3
4
5
6

Capital funds
Share premium (agio)
Other capital funds
Gain or loss on revaluation of assets and liabilities
Gain or loss on revaluation of corporation transformations
Gain or loss on corporation transformations
Gain or loss on revaluation upon corporation transformations

-1 837
0
0
-3 268
0
1 431
0

-9 988
0
0
-11 419
0
1 431
0

A III.
A III. 1
2

Funds created from profit
Reserve fund
Statutory and other funds

3 295
0
3 295

3 660
0
3 660

A. IV.
IV. 1
2
3

Profit (loss) for the previous years
Retained earnings for the previous years
Accumulated loss of previous years
Other retained earnings for previous years

212 307
212 362
-55
0

67 582
67 637
-55
0

A. V. 1.
A. V. 2.

Profit (loss) for the year (+ / -)
Approved decision on advances for profit distribution (-)

226 477

544 725
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current
year

prior year
2013

4 080 426

2 847 578

225 105
0
0
0
225 105

253 269
0
0
0
253 269

65 644
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
65 644
0

12 049
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
12 049
0

B.

LIABILITIES

B. I.
B. I. 1
2
3
4

Provisions
Provisions created under special legislation
Provision for pensions and similar obligations
Provision for corporate income tax
Other provisions

B. II.
B. II. 1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10

Long-term liabilities
Trade payables
Liabilities to group companies with majority control
Liabilities to group companies with control of 20% - 50%
Liabilities to partners
Long-term advances received
Bonds payable
Long-term notes payable
Unbilled deliveries
Other liabilities
Deferred tax liability

B. III.
B. III. 1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11

Current liabilities
Trade payables
Liabilities to group companies with majority control
Liabilities to group companies with control of 20% - 50%
Liabilities to partners
Liabilities to employees
Liabilities arising from social security and health insurance
Due to government – taxes and subsidies
Short-term advances received
Bonds payable
Unbilled deliveries
Other liabilities

1 028 684
588 236
0
0
0
45 323
25 877
6 214
252 159
0
86 825
24 050

1 031 522
596 321
0
0
0
40 345
23 250
8 156
285 775
0
57 578
20 097

B. IV.
B. IV. 1
2
3

Bank loans and borrowings
Long-term bank loans
Short-term bank loans
Borrowings

2 760 993
2 552 488
208 505
0

1 550 738
1 496 181
54 557
0

C. I.
C. I. 1
2

Accrued liabilities and deferred assets
Accruals
Deferred income

164 085
62
164 023

71 953
1 637
70 316

WING
Financial statement

A.

B.
B.
B.

H.
I.

119 271
90 732

336 956
250 602

28 539

86 354

Revenue from sale of goods
Cost of goods sold

+

Trade margins

II.
II. 1
2
3

Production
Revenue from sale of finished products and services
Change in inventory produced internally
Own work capitalized
Production related consumption
Consumption of material and energy
Services

4 432 666
3 809 838
498 958
123 870
2 807 678
2 023 798
783 880

6 486 304
6 255 533
-1 574
232 345
4 174 110
3 004 111
1 169 999

Value added

1 653 527

2 398 548

1
2

C.
C.
C.
C.
C.

F.
F.
F.
G.

prior
year 2013

I.

+

D.
E.

current
year

1
2
3
4

III.
III. 1
2
1
2
IV.
V.

Personnel expenses
Wages and salaries
Bonuses to members of corporation management
Social security and health insurance
Other social costs
Taxes and charges
Amortization and depreciation of intangible and tangible fixed assets
Revenue from sale of intangible and tangible fixed assets and materials
Revenues from sale of intangible and tangible fixed assets
Revenue from sale of materials
Net book value of intangible and tangible fixed assets and materials sold
Net book value of intangible and tangible fixed assets sold
Materials sold
Change in provisions and allowances relating to operations and in prepaid expenses
(specific-purpose expenses)
Other operating revenues
Other operating expenses
Transfer of operating revenues
Transfer of operating expenses

1 036 798
766 085
2 521
251 865
16 327

1 587 036
1 171 175
312
384 319
31 230

4 333
99 874
147 706
111 143
36 563
121 553
107 029
14 524

9 706
194 359
150 535
58 181
92 354
727 741
66 492
661 249

3 080

-619 283

1 716 186
1 747 238
0
0

2 101 284
2 070 390
0
0

*
J.

K.
L.
M.
N.
O.
P.

VI.
VII.
VII. 1
2
3
VIII.
IX.
X.
XI.
XII.
*

Q.
Q.
Q.

prior
year 2013

Profit or loss on operating activities

504 543

680 418

Revenue from sale of securities and interests
Securities and interests sold
Income from financial investments
Income from subsidiaries and associates
Income from other long-term securities and interests
Income from other financial investments
Income from short-term financial assets
Expenses related to financial assets
Gain on revaluation of securities and derivatives
Loss on revaluation of securities and derivatives
Change in provisions and allowances relating to financial activities
Interest income
Interest expense
Other finance income
Other finance cost
Transfer of finance income
Transfer of finance cost

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
2 618
23 089
0
3 969
45 348
92 798
309 748
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
16 841
42 953
0
4 853
66 234
585 544
635 454
0
0

-278 800

-137 403

0
0
0

0
0
0

225 743

543 015

3 481
2 747
0
0
0

5 754
4 044
0
0
0

734

1 710

0

0

Profit or loss on financial activities
1
2

**
XIII.
R.
S.
S. 1.
S. 2.
*
T.
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current
year

Tax on profit or loss on ordinary activities
- due
- deferred
Profit or loss on ordinary activities after taxation
Extraordinary gains
Extraordinary losses
Tax on extraordinary profit or loss
- due
- deferred
Extraordinary profit or loss
Transfer of share of profit or loss to partners (+/-)

***

Profit or loss for the year (+/-)

226 477

544 725

****

Profit or loss before taxation

226 477

544 725

WING
Financial statement
current
year

prior
year 2013

Cash flows from operating activities
225 743

543 015

Adjustments to reconcile profit or loss to net cash provided by or used in operating activities
Depreciation and amortization of fixed assets and write-off of receivables
Change in allowances
Change in provisions
Foreign exchange differences
(Gain)/Loss on disposal of fixed assets
Interest expense and interest income
Other non-cash movements (e.g. revaluation at fair value to profit or loss, dividends received)

146 342
99 874
27 182
-28 164
2 399
-4 114
41 379
7 786

1 313 932
284 212
864 404
76 416
-7 004
8 311
61 381
26 212

Net cash from operating activities before taxation,
changes in working capital and extraordinary items

372 085

1 856 947

Change in non-cash components of working capital
Change in inventory
Change in trade receivables
Change in other receivables and in prepaid expenses and unbilled revenue
Change in trade payables
Change in other payables, short-term loans and in accruals and deferred income

-757 394
-744 700
40 951
-125 306
-12 647
84 308

-1 947 204
-1 984 747
-380 140
-84 125
226 682
275 126

A **

Net cash from operating activities before taxation, interest paid and extraordinary items

-385 309

-90 257

A. 3. 1.
A. 4. 1.
A. 5. 1.

Interest paid
Tax paid
Gains and losses on extraordinary items

-49 415
0
734

-66 234
0
1 710

A ***

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

-433 990

-154 781

A.
A.
A.
A.
A.
A.
A.
A.

1.
1.
1.
1.
1.
1.
1.
1.

1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.

A *
A.
A.
A.
A.
A.
A.

2.
2.
2.
2.
2.
2.

1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
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prior
year 2013

Purchase of fixed assets
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets
Loans granted
Interest received
Dividends received

-501 989
111 143
6 656
16 454
0

-921 214
58 181
-46 503
-2 551
0

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities

-367 736

-912 087

1 263 605

57 986

0
-400 000
0

1 000 000
0
239 732

Cash flows from investing activities

Profit or loss on ordinary activities before taxation (+/-)\

Z.

current
year

B.
B.
B.
B.
B.

1.
2.
3.
4.
5.

1.
1.
1.
1.
1.

B ***

Cash flows from financing activities
C. 1.

Change in long-term liabilities and long-term, resp. short-tem, loans

C. 2. 1.
C. 2. 2.
C. 2. 3.

Effect of changes in basic capital on cash
Profit shares paid
Effect of other changes in basic capital on cash

C

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities

863 605

1 297 718

Net increase (decrease) in cash
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

61 879
232 824
294 703

230 850
1 974
232 824

F.
P.
R.

***

WING
Notes to the financial statement
1. Description of the company
AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. (“the Company”) is a joint stock company incorporated on 15 December 2011 under the name of TULAREO a.s.
in the Czech Republic. The Company’s registered office is located at Odolena Voda, Dolínek, U Letiště 374, 250 70, Czech Republic and the
business registration number (IČ) is 24194204. The Company is involved in cooperation in producing helicopters and aircraft parts, foreign trade
of military products, development, production, repairs and modernization of military training and combat jets, and other aircraft related work.
The following changes were recorded to the Commercial Register in 2014:
Mgr. Ondřej Benáček´s membership in the Board of Directors ceased to exist on 31 August 2014.
Ing. Dominika Kalinová was appointed new member of the Board of Directors as at 1 September 2014.
Shareholders holding a 10% or greater interest in the Company’s basic capital are as follows:
TULAROSA a.s.
100 %

2. Basic of presentation of the financial statements
The accompanying financial statements were prepared in accordance with the Czech Act on Accounting and the related guidelines
as applicable for 2014 and 2013.
The accompanying financial statements for 2014 were prepared for the twelve-month period ended 31 December 2014 ("2014 fiscal year") .
Due to the Company’s participation in the transformation in the form of spin-off by merger (see Note 1), the prior year financial statements
were prepared for the 24-month period, i.e. from 1 January 2012 to 31 December 2013 (“2013 accounting period”). Therefore, the information
in the income statement and the statement of cash flows for the current period cannot be directly compared with the information in the
income statement for the previous period.
These financial statements are presented on the basis of accounting principles and standards generally accepted in the Czech Republic.
Certain accounting practices applied by the Company that conform with generally accepted accounting principles and standards in the Czech
Republic may not conform with generally accepted accounting principles in other countries.

The parent company and the sole shareholder of the Company is TULAROSA a.s. with its registered office located at Na Florenci 2116/15
Prague 1, Czech Republic. The ultimate parent company is PENTA INVESTMENTS LIMITED.

3. Summary of significant accounting policies
The accompanying financial statements have been prepared as separate financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014.
Consolidated financial statements pursuant to the Czech accounting standards are prepared by TULAROSA a.s.’s parent company,
OAKFIELD a.s. The Company is included in its consolidated group. The Company is included in the consolidated group of OAKFIELD a.s.
Members of the statutory bodies as at 31 December 2014 were as follows:
Board of Directors
Chair:
Ing. Ladislav Šimek, MBA
Member:
Ing. Petr Brychta
Member:
Ing. Dominika Kalinová
Supervisory Board
Chair:
Member:
Member:

The accounting policies applied by the Company in preparing the 2014 and 2013 financial statements are as follows:
a) Intangible Fixed Assets
Intangible fixed assets are recorded at their acquisition cost and related expenses.
Intangible fixed assets with a cost exceeding CZK 60 thousand are amortized over their useful economic lives. Small intangible fixed assets
(with a cost of less than CZK 60 thousand) are expensed upon acquisition and carried only in a subsidiary ledger.
Internally-developed intangible fixed assets are recorded at their accumulated cost, which consist of direct material, labor costs and
production overheads.

Ing. Zdeněk Sýkora
Ing. Jan Kříž
Jan Borýsek

On 26 November 2012, AERO Vodochody a.s., business registration number (IČ): 00010545, filed a project of Company’s division in the form
of spin-off by merger (“Spin-off project”) in the Collection of Documents at the Commercial Register. In accordance with the Spin-off project,
the assets spun-off from AERO Vodochody a.s. were transferred to the successor company, AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s., business
registration No. 24194204, with its registered address at Odolena Voda-Dolínek, U Letiště 374, zip code 250 70. The decisive date of the
transformation was 1 January 2012. As the transformation of the Company was entered in the Commercial Register as at 1 May 2013, the Company
proceeded in accordance with Section 17a) of the Act No. 586/1992 Coll. on Income Taxes, and in accordance with Section 3 of Act No. 563/1991
Coll., on Accounting, stipulating that the accounting (as well as tax) period of the Company shall be the 24-month period (the "2013 fiscal year")
beginning as at the decisive date, i.e. 1 January 2012, and ending on the last day of the calendar year in which the entry of the transformation
in the Commercial Register takes place, i.e. 31 December 2013.
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Amortization
Amortization is calculated based on the acquisition cost and the estimated useful life of the related asset. The estimated useful lives
are as follows:

Software
Patents, royalties and similar rights

Years
3
per contract

An allowance is created against intangible fixed assets if their value as identified by the stocktaking is significantly lower than their
carrying amount.

WING
Notes to the financial statement
b) Tangible Fixed Assets
Tangible fixed assets with a cost exceeding CZK 40 thousand are recorded at their acquisition cost, which consists of purchase price, freight,
customs duties and other related costs.

e) Receivables
Both long- and short-term receivables are carried at their realizable value after allowance for doubtful accounts. Additions to the allowance
account are charged to income.

Internally-developed tangible fixed assets are recorded at their accumulated cost, which consist of direct material, labor costs and
production overheads.

f) Derivatives
Derivatives are initially measured at cost. Derivatives are recorded in other current liabilities in the accompanying balance sheet.

Tangible fixed assets acquired free of charge are valued at their replacement cost and are recorded with a corresponding credit to the ‘Other
capital funds account’ on the date of acquisition. The replacement cost of these assets is set on the basis of the cost known at the moment
of the respective asset acquisition.

Derivatives are classified as derivatives held for trading or hedging derivatives.

The costs of technical improvements are capitalized. Repairs and maintenance expenses are expensed as incurred.
Depreciation
Depreciation is calculated based on the acquisition cost and the estimated useful life of the related asset. The estimated useful lives
are as follows:

Constructions
Machinery and equipment
Vehicles
Furniture and fixtures
Other tangibles

Years
30 - 45
10 - 30
8 - 20
4 - 15
5 - 20

An allowance is created against tangible fixed assets if their value as identified by the stocktaking is significantly lower than their carrying amount.
c) Financial Assets
Short-term financial assets consist of liquid valuables, cash in hand and at bank.
Long-term financial assets consist in particular of ownership interests and shareholdings.
Interests and securities are valued at their acquisition cost, which includes the purchase price and direct costs related to the acquisition,
e.g. fees and commissions paid to agents and stock exchanges.
As at 31 December, ownership interests constituting dominant or significant influence are valued at acquisition cost. If there is a decrease
in the carrying value of long-term financial assets that are not revalued at the balance sheet date, the difference is considered a temporary
diminution in value and is recorded as an allowance.
d) Inventory
Purchased inventory is stated at actual cost being determined using the weighted average method. Costs of purchased inventory include
acquisition-related costs (freight, customs, commission, etc).
Work-in-progress and semi-finished products are recorded at standard cost, which approximates actual. The cost of inventory produced
internally includes direct material and labor costs and production overhead costs. Production overhead costs include energy, repairs
and maintenance, telecommunication and IT costs, depreciation and other production services and materials and are allocated based
on direct labor hours.
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The latter are designated as either fair value hedges or cash flow hedges. In order to qualify for hedge accounting, the change in the fair value
of a derivative or of its estimated cash flow must offset, in whole or in part, the change in the fair value or cash flow arising from the
hedged item. In addition, there must be formal documentation of the hedging relationship at inception and the Company must prove that
the hedging relationship is highly effective. In all other cases, derivatives are recognized as held-for-trading.
Derivatives are revalued to fair value as at the balance sheet date. Changes in the fair value of derivatives held for trading are reported
in income. Changes in the fair value of derivatives designated as fair value hedges are also recognized in income, together with the change
in the fair value of the hedged item attributable to the risk being hedged. Changes in the fair value of derivatives designated as cash flow
hedges are taken to equity and reflected in the balance sheet through gain or loss on revaluation of assets and liabilities. Any ineffective
portion of the hedge is reported in income.
g) Equity
The basic capital of the Company is stated at the amount recorded in the Commercial Register maintained in the Municipal Court.
Any increase or decrease in the basic capital made pursuant to the decision of the General Meeting which was not entered in the Commercial
Register as at the financial statements date is recorded through changes in basic capital. Contributions in excess of basic capital are recorded
as share premium. Other capital funds are created pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Incorporation.
In compliance with the Corporations Act and the Articles of Association the Company is no longer obliged to establish a legal reserve fund.
h) Provisions and Liabilities
Long-term liabilities and current liabilities are carried at their nominal values. Amounts resulting from the revaluation of financial derivatives
at fair value are shown in other payables.
Long-term and short-term loans are recorded at their nominal values. Any portion of long-term debt which is due within one year
of the balance sheet date is classified as short-term debt.
Contingent liabilities that are not recorded in the balance sheet because significant uncertainties exist with respect to the amount,
title or timing of the expected outflow of benefits are described in Note 18.
i) Leases
The Company records leased assets by expensing the lease payments and capitalizing the residual value of the leased assets when
the lease contract expires and the purchase option is exercised. Lease payments paid in advance are recorded as prepaid expenses and
amortized over the lease term.

WING
Notes to the financial statement
j) Foreign Currency Transactions
Assets and liabilities whose acquisition or production costs were denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Czech crowns
at the exchange rate prevailing at the transaction date. On the balance sheet date monetary items are adjusted to the exchange rates
as published by the Czech National Bank as at 31 December.
Realized and unrealized exchange rate gains and losses were charged or credited, as appropriate, to income for the year.
k) Recognition of Revenues and Expenses
Revenues and expenses are recognized on an accrual basis, that is, they are recognized in the periods in which the actual flow of the related
goods or services occurs, regardless of when the related monetary flow arises.

p) Subsequent Events
The impact of events that occurred between the balance sheet date and the date of the financial statements preparation is recognized in the
financial statements provided these events provide additional evidence about conditions that existed at the date of the balance sheet.
If material events reflecting the facts occurring after the balance sheet date happened between the balance sheet date and the date
of the financial statements preparation the consequences of these events are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements but not
recognized in the financial statements.

4. Fixed assets
a) Intangible Fixed Assets (in CZK thousands)

The Company recognizes as an expense any additions to provisions or allowances against risks, losses or physical damage that are known
as at the financial statements’ date.
Long-term contracts are accounted for according to the completed contract method (or as specified in the contract).
l) Income Tax
The corporate income tax expense is calculated based on the statutory tax rate and book income before taxes, increased or decreased by
the appropriate permanent and temporary differences (e.g. non-deductible provisions and allowances, entertainment expenses, differences
between book and tax depreciation, etc. In addition, the following items are taken into consideration: tax base decreasing items (donations),
tax deductible items (tax loss, research and development costs) and income tax reliefs.
The deferred tax position reflects the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for corporate income tax purposes, taking into consideration the period of realization.
m) Subsidies
The subsidies to cover costs are recorded in other operating income upon receipt of the subsidy, observing the matching and accrual principles
applied to accounting for related costs. The subsidies for the acquisition of intangible and tangible fixed assets and technical improvements, along
with subsidies to cover interest included in the acquisition cost, either reduce the related acquisition cost or own work capitalized. Received
subsidies are recorded in separate accounts. This treatment enables the Company to closely monitor subsidies’ receipt and utilization.
n) Emission Allowances
Carbon emission allowances are recorded as intangible fixed assets, which are not depreciated and are valued at cost or replacement cost
when acquired free-of-charge.
The “use of emission allowances” is recorded as at the financial statements’ date contingent to the volume of the entity´s emissions in the
calendar year. The first free-of-charge acquisition is recorded as other liabilities, which are recognized into income at the time and in the
amount corresponding to the usage of allowances.
o) Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting
period. The Company management prepared these estimates and predictions based on all available relevant information. These estimates
and assumptions are based on information available as at the date of the financial statements and may differ from actual results.
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CoST

Software
Patents, royalties
and similar rights
Other intangibles
Intangibles in progress
Total 2014
Total 2013

At beginning
of year
214,429

Effect
of division
-

Additions

Disposals

Transfers

-

-

18,413

At end
of year
232,842

257,267

-

-

-

578

257,845

2,000
110,835
584,531
-

431,532

24
95,286
95,310
169,712

-1,559
-1,559
-16,713

701
-19,692
-

1,166
186,429
678,282
584,531

ACCUMULATED AMoRTIZATIoN
At beginning
of year
Software
-204,409
Patents, royalties and similar rights -56,819
Other intangibles
-209
Intangibles in progress
Total 2014
-261,437
Total 2013
-

Effect
of division
-244,570

Amortization
during year
-11,547
-2,819
-167
-14,533
-16,867

Sales

Disposals

-1,559
-1,559
-

1,559
1,559
-

At end
of year
-215,956
-59,638
-376
-275,970
-261,437

Net book
value
16,886
198,207
790
186,429
402,312
323,094

Patents, royalties and similar rights as at 31 December 2014 and 2013 include, in particular, assets purchased or internally developed
within the development of a part of the wing for the CSeries aircraft for the Canadian producer Bombardier.
Intangibles in progress as at 31 December 2014 and 2013 include, in particular, assets internally developed within the development
for the aircraft for the Brazilian producer Empresa Brasileira de Aeronáutica S.A. (Embraer).
The total value of small intangible fixed assets, which are not reflected in the accompanying balance sheet, was CZK 5,711 thousand
and CZK 5,683 thousand at acquisition cost as at 31 December 2014 and 2013, respectively.
Intangible fixed assets at a cost of CZK 246,529 thousand are fully amortized as at 31 December 2014.

WING
Notes to the financial statement
b) Tangible Fixed Assets (in CZK thousands)

As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, tangibles in progress include in particular production tools for the Alenia and Embraer projects.

CoST

The total value of small tangible fixed assets, which are not reflected in the accompanying balance sheet, including small tangible fixed
assets located at delivery stations, was CZK 652,083 thousand at acquisition cost as at 31 December 2014. The total value of small tangible
fixed assets, which are not reflected in the accompanying balance sheet, including small tangible fixed assets located at delivery stations,
was CZK 618,989 thousand at acquisition cost as at 31 December 2013.

at beginning
of year
31.12.2013
16,906
993,674
1,490,509
234,650
8,535
9,456
326,348
24,935
3,105,013
-

Land
Constructions
Machinery and equipment
Vehicles
Furniture and fixtures
Other tangibles
Tangibles in progress
Advances for tangibles
Total 2014
Total 2013

effect
of division

additions

disposals

transfers

2,611,283

390,662
36,803
427,465
660,135

(269)
(57,633)
(1,851)
(66)
(99,765)
(16,731)
(176,315)
(166,405)

31,847
192,563
53
749
3,877
(229,089)
-

at end
of year
31.12.2014
16,906
1,025,252
1,625,439
232,852
9,218
13,333
388,156
45,007
3,356,163
3,105,013

Tangible fixed assets at a cost of CZK 734,480 thousand and CZK 756,329 thousand are fully depreciated as at 31 December 2014 and 2013, respectively.
The Company has adjusted the carrying value of certain tangible assets for a diminution in value through an allowance charged against income
(see Note 7). As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, the allowance was CZK 134,877 thousand and CZK 144,515 thousand, respectively. As at 31 December
2014 and 2013, a part of non-production buildings with a cost of CZK 14,250 thousand and CZK 14,250 thousand and a net book value of CZK
6,307 thousand and CZK 7,020 thousand, respectively were located outside the Company’s production plant (accommodation facilities).
The acquisition cost of assets with limited disposal rights was CZK 457,261 thousand and their net book value was CZK 213,332 thousand
as at 31 December 2014. The acquisition cost of assets with limited disposal rights was CZK 497,090 thousand and their net book value was
CZK 240,914 thousand as at 31 December 2013. The easement relates to the general agreement for after warranty support for L-159
and L-39 aircraft (see Note 18) and is not recorded in the Land Register.

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATIoN

Land
Constructions
Machinery and equipment
Vehicles
Furniture and fixtures
Other tangibles
Tangibles in progress
Advances for tangibles
Total 2014
Total 2013

at beginning
effect depreciation
of year of division
during
31.12.2013
year
(512,091)
(26,433)
(1,105,479)
(44,579)
(82,517)
(11,733)
(5,008)
(1,650)
(2,225)
(946)
(1,707,320)
(85,341)
- (1,582,883)
(177,492)
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cost
of sales or
liquidation
(5,409)
(178)
(118)
(99,765)
(105,470)
(66,492)

disposals

269
57,633
1,851
66
99,765
159,584
119,547

at end
of year
31.12.2014
(538,255)
(1,097,834)
(92,577)
(6,592)
(3,289)
(1,738,547)
(1,707,320)

allowances

net book
value

(133,897)
(980)
(134,877)
(144,515)

16,906
486,997
527,605
6,378
2,626
10,044
387,176
45,007
1,482,739
1,253,178

As at 31 December 2014, the acquisition cost of assets pledged amounted to CZK 141,852 thousand and the net book value amounted to CZK
90,915 thousand. As at 31 December 2013, the acquisition cost of assets pledged amounted to CZK 828,513 thousand and the net book value
amounted to CZK 454,320 thousand.
In 2014 and 2013, the Company received subsidies for fixed assets totaling CZK 67,539 thousand and CZK 30,782 thousand, respectively.

5. Inventory
Excess, obsolete and slow-moving inventory has been written down to its estimated net realizable value by an allowance account. The allowance is determined by management based on an inventory aging analysis and the analysis of its future usability (see Note 7).
allowances as at 31/ 12/ 2014
(in czK thousands):
Ae270
L-39
L-59
L-159
Sikorsky Program
Not-assigned materials
Other inventory
Total

materials
34,826
50,455
40,433
200,398
18,249
3,285
20,927
368,573

work-in-progress,
semi-finished products and goods
21,987
15,487
559
35,957
1,405
253
10,519
86,167

advances granted
for inventory
5,294
3,154
394
346
9,188

WING
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6. Receivables

8. Short-term financial assets

Allowances against outstanding receivables that are considered doubtful were charged to income based on their analysis (see Note 7).

As at 31 December 2014, the Company had the following restricted cash balances (in CZK thousands):

As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, receivables overdue for more than 180 days totaled CZK 44,817 thousand and CZK 42,280 thousand, respectively.
In 2014 and 2013, the Company ceded receivables of CZK 1,657,842 thousand and CZK 1,920,313 thousand, respectively. In 2014 and 2013,
income from the ceded receivables amounted to CZK 1,655,304 thousand and CZK 1,913,223 thousand, respectively. Nominal values of these
receivables along with the income from the cession were included in other operating expenses or other operating revenues, as appropriate,
in the income statement.

bank
ČSOB, a.s.
Komerční banka, a.s.
Komerční banka, a.s.
ČEB, a.s.
Total

currency
EUR
EUR
EUR
USD

amount in foreign currency (in thousands)
992
3,056
2,632
835

2014
amount in czK thousands
27,515
84,725
72,962
19,065
204,267

As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, unbilled revenue represents, in particular, accrued interest on the loans to related parties (see Note 21).
As at 31 December 2014, receivables from Sonaca, Sikorsky and Empresa Brasileira de Aeronáutica S.A. (Embraer) totaling CZK 478,654
thousand were pledged to secure provided loans (see Note 13). As at 31 December 2013, receivables from Sonaca and Sikorsky totaling CZK
571,891 thousand were pledged to secure provided loans (see Note 13).
Long- and short-term receivables from related parties (see Note 21).

Financial assets deposited in restricted accounts represent a security for guarantees granted by the banks (see Note 13). As at 31 December
2013, the Company had restricted cash balance of CZK 44,628 thousand. All bank accounts, except for the aforementioned account with
restricted balances, are pledged as security to the benefit of Komerční banka, a.s. a Česká exportní banka, a.s. (see Note 13).
Pursuant to a general agreement for financial services entered into by and between the Company and Komerční banka, a.s., on 23 September
2009, the Company was granted an overdraft facility of CZK 120,000 thousand. The overdraft was used and repaid on an ongoing basis
during 2014; its balance was CZK 101,480 thousand as at 31 December 2014.

7. Allowances
Pursuant to an agreement for credit line and addenda thereto entered into by and between the Company and Česká spořitelna, a.s.,
on 9 August 2012, the Company was granted an overdraft facility of CZK 50,000 thousand. The overdraft was used and repaid on an ongoing
basis during 2014; its balance was CZK 21,807 thousand as at 31 December 2014.

Allowances reflect a temporary diminution in the value of assets (see Notes 4, 5 and 6).
Changes in the allowance accounts (in CZK thousands):
allowances
balance at
against:
31/12/2011
Tangible fixed assets
Inventory
Advances granted for inventory
Receivables – legal
Receivables – other
Total
-

effect
of division
165,445
1,045,042
8,917
348
12,154
1,231,906

additions deductions
304
173,504
2,492
9,574
185,874

(21,234)
(787,553)
(2,126)
(6)
(2,734)
(813,653)

balance at
31/12/2013
144,515
430,993
9,283
342
18,994
604,127

additions

deductions

980
70,135
122
15,318
86,555

(10,618)
(46,388)
(217)
(10)
(2,140)
(59,373)

balance at
31/12/2014
134,877
454,740
9,188
332
32,172
631,309

Pursuant to an agreement for the provision of loan, letters of credit and bank guarantees entered into by and between the Company and
Československá obchodní banka, a.s., on 20 December 2013, the Company was granted an overdraft facility of CZK 50,000 thousand. The Loan
was used on an ongoing basis during 2014; its balance was CZK 31,279 thousand as at 31 December 2014.
For deposits placed at related parties see Note 21.

9. other assets
As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, prepaid expenses include in particular prepaid rent, interest expenses, premiums and overhead costs,
which are charged to income for the year in which they were incurred.

Release of allowances against inventories has been related to their disposal and sale (see Note 21).
As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, specific-purpose prepaid expenses include in particular prepaid expenses related to preparation
and implementation of production within the Sonaca program for Bombardier and the Embraer project for Empresa Brasileira de Aeronáutica S.A.
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10. Equity

11. Provisions

On 2 May 2013, TULAROSA a.s. as the sole shareholder of the Company decided on a basic capital increase by CZK 1,000,000 thousand.
The basic capital increase was carried out through subscription of 5,000 ordinary registered shares in materialized form, with a nominal value
of CZK 200 thousand per share. As at 31 December 2014, the basic capital of the Company consists of 5,010 ordinary registered shares
in materialized form, with a nominal value of CZK 200 thousand and is fully paid.
The movements in the capital accounts during 2014 and 2013 were as follows (in CZK thousands):
balance as
at 31/12/2011
10
2,000

effect of
division
-

5,000
1,000,000

-

(33,921)

49,742

(27,240)

(11,419)

(3,346)

11,497

(3,268)

-

4,272
67,637
-

-

(612)
(55)

3,660
67,637
(55)

144,725
-

(365)
-

3,295
212,362
(55)

-

-

1,431

-

1,431

-

-

1,431

(55)

-

544,780

-

544,725

226,447

(544,725)

226,447

Number of shares
Basic capital
Differences arising from
revaluation of assets and liabilities
Other funds
Retained earnings
Accumulated loss
Differences arising
from company transformations
Profit/loss for the period

increase

decrease

balance as
at 31/12/2013
5,010
1,002,000

increase
-

decrease

balance as
at 31/12/2014
5,010
1,002,000

Other funds from profit represent a social fund.
In 2014, gain or loss on revaluation arose due to the revaluation of derivative transactions (see Note 15) and the revaluation of interest
in the subsidiary Clester Trading a.s.
The Annual General Meeting held on 24 July 2014 approved the distribution of the 2013 profit in the form of dividend payment in the amount
of CZK 400,000 thousand and allocation of the remaining portion of the 2013 profit of CZK 144,725 thousand to retained earnings. In 2013,
the Annual General Meeting approved the loss compensation of CZK 55 thousand for the 2011 accounting period.

The movements in the provision accounts were as follows (in CZK thousands):
provisions

balance as
at 31/12/2011
Contractual charges and penalties
Guarantee repairs L-159 and L-159T1
Business transaction Tunisia and Algeria Provision for L-39 flying hours
Staff bonuses
Accrued vacation
Business transaction Sikorsky
Business transaction Latecoere
Business transaction Bulgaria
Business transaction CASA
Business transaction Sonaca S.A.
Business transaction Alenia
Business transaction Black Hawk
Business transaction VDOT
Business transaction PP
Business transaction EMBRAER
Business transaction A321
Business transaction GBD Boeing
Total
-

effect
of division
3,321
5,950
902
43,450
16,552
70,001
2,893
982
780
1,415
7,105
7,193
160,544

additions deductions
4,594
4,845
433
96,932
91,036
115,418
16,589
31
17,478
250
347,606

(3,321)
(10,544)
(62,230)
(93,890)
(55,836)
(2,893)
(982)
(372)
(10,515)
(7,105)
(7,193)
(254,881)

zůstatek
at 31/12/2013
5,747
433
78,152
13,698
129,583
16,589
439
8,378
250
253,269

additions

deductions

9,291
433
56,999
87,656
39,334
2,135
12,993
7,407
3,060
974
11,054
231,336

(3,823)
(433)
(78,995)
(84,628)
(87,641)
(42)
(3,938)
(259,500)

zůstatek
at 31/12/2014
11,215
433
56,156
16,726
81,276
2,135
29,582
7,804
7,500
974
11,054
250
225,105

12. Current and long-term liabilities
As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, the Company had overdue current liabilities totaling CZK 131,190 thousand and CZK 136,799 thousand,
respectively.
Unbilled deliveries include, in particular, supplies of material and services, which are charged to income for the year in which they were incurred.
As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, advance payments received include, in particular, advances from the Brazilian firm Empresa Brasileira
de Aeronáutica S.A. (Embraer) for the production of aviatic parts.
As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, the Company had liabilities of CZK 25,877 thousand and CZK 23,250 thousand, respectively owing
to social security and health insurance premiums not yet mature.
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In 2012 and 2014 the Company and SG EQUIPMENT FINANCE entered into agreements for loans with fixed interest rates. Loan balance with SG
EQUIPMENT FINANCE as at 31 December (in CZK thousands):
2014
2013
due date
interest rate
amount in czK thousands
amount in czK thousands
15/10/2017
1.025%
12,048
17,031
SG EQUIPMENT FINANCE
SG EQUIPMENT FINANCE
15/11/2019
0.449%
13,093
SG EQUIPMENT FINANCE
15/12/2019
0.449%
16,510
SG EQUIPMENT FINANCE
4/2020
0.449%
42,017
Total
83,668
17,031
Less current portion
(18,024)
(4,982)
Net
65,644
12,049

As at 31 December 2014, the above loans were secured by the pledge as follows:
- Pledge of receivables (see Note 6);
- Pledge of current accounts (see Note 8);
- Blank bills of exchange issued;
- Guarantee issued by Penta Investments Limited up to CZK 378 million;
- Pledge of inventories (see Note 5);
- Pledge of AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s.’s shares pursuant to the agreement with the parent company TULAROSA a.s.;
- Pledge of real estate (see Note 4b).
Interest expense on all received bank loans totaled CZK 45,348 thousand and CZK 66,234 thousand for 2014 and 2013, respectively.
Based on the above revolving loan agreement for financing of the Sikorsky program, the Company is obliged to fulfill the following financial covenants:

The long-term portion of the loans is classified within "Other long-term liabilities". The short-term portion of the loans is classified within
"Other current liabilities".
As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, other current liabilities comprise inter alia negative fair values of outstanding derivatives (see Note 15).
Payables to related parties (see Note 21).

covenant
Net debt
Debt coverage ratio (interest
period after 31/ 12/ 2014)

13. Bankovní úvěry

Financial leverage
Bank
Komerční banka a.s., CITIBANK a.s.,
Česká spořitelna, a.s. a Československá
obchodní banka, a.s. for financing of the
Sikorsky and Black Hawk projects
Komerční banka, a.s.
"Redevelopment and equipment of AV’s
composite center“ project
Česká exportní banka, a.s.
– Sonaca programme
Česká exportní banka, a.s.
– Embraer programme
Komerční banka a.s.
– overdraft
Česká spořitelna, a.s.
– overdraft
Československá obchodní
banka, a.s. – overdraft
Bank loans - outstanding interest
Total
Less current portion
Net

Due date

16/12/2016

31/12/2017
31/12/2021
31/12/2022
30/9/2015
31/8/2015
n/a
n/a

Interest
rate
1M LIBOR
+ margin

31/12/2014
31. 12. 2014
Total
Amount in Amount in CZK
Amount in Amount in CZK
limit foreign currency
thousands foreign currency
thousands
USD
80,000
thousand

1M LIBOR CZK 60,000
+ margin thousand
3M PRIBOR
+ margin
6M PRIBOR
+ margin
O/N PRIBOR
+ margin
1M LIBOR
+ margin
O/N PRIBOR
+ margin
n/a
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CZK 378,000
thousand
CZK 550,000
thousand
CZK 120,000
thousand
CZK 50,000
thousand
CZK 50,000
thousand
n/a

80,000

1,826,720

56,340

1,120,835

37,000

-

49,000

-

361,725

-

338,346

-

376,914

-

-

-

101,480

-

1,575

-

21,807

-

40,982

-

31,279

-

-

-

4,068
2,760,993
(208,550)
2,552,488

-

1,550,738
(54,557)
1,496,181

required value
< 4:1
> 150%
< 65%

As at 31 December 2014, the Company is not in compliance with the above financial indicators.
Based on the above loan agreement with Česká exportní banka, a.s., for financing of the Sonaca program, the Company is obliged to fulfill
the following financial covenants:
covenant

-

calculation
(Bank loans – short-term financial assets) / EBITDA
(including adjustments relating to disposal/sale of inventory acquired prior to 2007)
(Annual net income + amortization/depreciation + change in provisions
and allowances – change in inventories – change in current receivables
+ change in current payables – CAPEX + interest expense) / (interest expense)
Total provisions and liabilities / Total assets

Net debt
Debt coverage ratio (interest
period after 31/ 12/ 2014)
Financial leverage

calculation
(Bank loans – short-term financial assets) / EBITDA
(including adjustments relating to disposal/sale of inventory acquired prior to 2007)
(Annual net income + amortization/depreciation + change in provisions
and allowances – change in inventories – change in current receivables
+ change in current payables – CAPEX + interest expense) / (interest expense)
Total provisions and liabilities / Total assets

As at 31 December 2014, the Company is not in compliance with the above financial indicators.

required value
< 4:1
> 150%
< 65%
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15. Derivates

As at 31 December 2013, the Company was provided with the following bank guarantees (in CZK thousands):
bank
Komerční banka, a.s.

ČSOB, a.s.

ČEB, a.s.
Total

guarantee type
performance bond
performance bond
performance bond
performance bond
performance bond
performance bond
advance payment
performance bond
performance bond
performance bond
performance bond
performance bond
bid bond
advance payment
advance payment
performance bond
performance bond
advance payment
performance bond
advance payment
performance bond
performance bond
advance payment
performance bond

Valid until
indefinite
indefinite
indefinite
3/2/2016
indefinite
indefinite
30/1/2015
indefinite
10/2/2015
indefinite
indefinite
indefinite
30/3/2015
indefinite
indefinite
indefinite
31/8/2015
25/2/2015
1/3/2017
1/3/2015
15/10/2016
15/10/2016
31/8/2015
22/5/2015

amount
5,961
2,107
970
2,773
5,117
1,026
7,389
22,890
3,231
25,508
2,773
4,831
171
7,247
7,247
2,066
1,656
53,852
157
2,826
479
312
55,199
189,719
405,507

As at 31 December 2014, the Company secured received bank guarantees by cash of CZK 204,267 thousand deposited in restricted bank accounts
(see Note 8). All bank accounts, except for the aforementioned account with restricted balances, are pledged as security to the benefit of Komerční
banka, a.s. a Česká exportní banka, a.s.

14. other liabilities
As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, deferred income includes revenues from sales related to Sonaca, Alenia, Sikorsky and Aerolia projects,
which are recognized into income for the year in which they were earned.
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The Company has concluded several hedging derivative contracts as at 31 December 2014 and 2013. The derivatives were revalued at fair
value, with negative fair values of the hedging derivatives being included in other payables and in differences arising from the revaluation
of assets and liabilities in the accompanying balance sheet.
The following table summarizes face values and negative values of outstanding hedging derivatives as at 31 December (in CZK thousands):

(in czK thousands)
Options
Swaps
Total derivatives held for hedging

face value
166,350

positive
-

2014
fair value
negative
(3,346)

166,350

-

(3,346)

face value
414,708
119,281
533,989

positive
-

2013
fair value
negative
10,206
1,272
11,478

Hedging derivatives include derivatives that are designated as hedging instruments of assets and liabilities in a hedge of a foreign currency
or interest rate risks and that meet the criteria for hedge accounting.
The following table summarizes face values and negative values of outstanding derivatives held for trading as at 31 December (in CZK thousands):

(in czK thousands)
Options
Currency SWAP
Total derivatives held for trading

face value
16,635
16,440
33,075

positive
-

2014
fair value
negative
(675)
(245)
(920)

face value
82,941
82,941

positive
-

2013
fair value
negative
(3,043)
(3,043)

WING
Notes to the financial statement
17. Leasing

16. Income taxes
2014 accounting period (in czK thousands)
Profit before taxes
226,477
(148,512)
Differences between book and tax depreciation
Non-deductible expenses
Change in allowances
27,192
Change in provisions
(28,164)
Shortages and losses
35,055
Other (e.g. entertainment expenses)
22,971
Unpaid contractual penalties
(7,039)
Deduction of research and development costs
(127,980)
Current income tax rate
19%
Current tax expense
-

2013 accounting period (in czK thousands))
544,725
(62,008)

The Company leases fixed assets, which are not recorded on the balance sheet (see Note 3i).
Assets which are being used by the Company under operating leases as at 31 December 2014 consist of the following (in CZK thousands):
description

(627,773)
92,725
33,251
43,445
(24,365)
19%
-

terms

Information technologies

until 2017

expense
in 2014
5,119

expense
in 2013
3,255

cost
23,207

Assets which are being used by the Company under finance leases (i.e. the assets are transferred to the Company when the lease term
expires) as of 31 December 2014 consist of the following (in CZK thousands):
description
Machinery

terms

total lease

until 2021

181,038

payments made
as at 31/ 12/ 2014
49,563

remaining payments as at 31/ 12/ 2014
due within one year
due over one year
24,723
106,752

The Company quantified deferred taxes as follows (in CZK thousands):

deferred
tax asset

31/12/2014
deferred
tax liability

deferred
tax asset

31/12/2013
deferred
tax liability

-

-16 634

12 952

-

7,858
86,401
25,627
42,770
162,656
146,022

(16,634)
-

5,373
81,888
27,458
48,121
175,792
175,792

-

deferred tax items
Difference between net book value
of fixed assets for accounting and tax purposes
Other temporary differences:
Allowance against receivables and advances for inventory
Allowance against inventory
Allowance against fixed assets
Provisions
Total
Net

As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, the Company did not record a deferred tax asset of CZK 146,022 thousand and CZK 175,792 thousand,
respectively on the basis that its future recovery is uncertain.

18. Commitments and contingencies
The Company has a contractual relationship with mediators and records liabilities to them upon the completion of sales contracts.
Pursuant to the sale contract, the Company undertakes to pay the mediator a part of the income earned. It is not possible to determine
the amount until contract completion.
As at 8 December 2005, AERO Vodochody a.s. entered into a general agreement for after warranty support for L-159 and L-39 aircraft with
the Ministry of Defense of the Czech Republic. The contract was signed for a definite period until January 2029. Within the Spin-off project
(see Note 1), the general agreement has been transferred to AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. According to this agreement, the Company
is obliged to provide services, maintenance and spare parts for planes already owned by the Army of the Czech Republic, and to assist
during their modernization. In cases of significant breaches of the contractual terms or in case of withdrawal from the contract, the Ministry
of Defense of the Czech Republic is entitled to claim a penalty and potential additional compensation from the Company. Under the terms
of this agreement, a significant portion of its fixed assets may not be freely disposed of (see Note 4b).
The main production orders are realized on the basis of long-term contracts with suppliers. As at 31 December 2014, the commitments
arising from contracts concluded with suppliers amounted to CZK 1,578,822 thousand; of that the supplies for the Sikorsky project totaled
CZK 843,345 thousand. These contracts, as a rule, include a provision stipulating the amount of compensation that the Company is obliged
to pay if it fails to fulfill contractual obligations or if it withdraws from the contract. In addition, the suppliers do not accept responsibility
for possible subsequent damage caused by an accident.
The Company has concluded liability insurance for its own aviation activity, inter alia liability for operation of aircraft including accident
insurance, liability for hangars operation, liability for airport and navigation tower operation, and insurance for damage caused by faulty
products. The overall limit regarding insurance for damage caused by faulty products totals USD 500,000 thousand, including sublimits for
selected projects, i.e. USD 250,000 thousand and USD 200,000 thousand for the Sikorsky and SAAB project, respectively. The globally
effective insurance covers the major risks emerging from the Company’s aeronautical operations.
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21. Related party information

19. Revenues

The members of statutory and supervisory bodies, directors and executive officers were granted no loans, guarantees, advances or other
benefits in the 2014 and 2013 accounting period and they do not hold any shares of the Company.

The breakdown of revenues from ordinary activities (in CZK thousands):

domestic
1,191,791
107,981
1,299,772

Aviation production
Non-aviation production
Total revenues

2013 accounting period
foreign
5,292,717
5,292,717

domestic
446,634
37,436
484,070

2014 accounting period
foreign
3,445,039
3,445,039

The Company sells products, goods and provides services to related parties in the ordinary course of business. Sales including interest
income were CZK 20,288 thousand and CZK 91,979 thousand (of which interest income was CZK 3,771 thousand and CZK 4,014 thousand)
in 2014 and 2013, respectively.
Loans provided to related parties as at 31 December were as follows (in CZK thousands):.

In the 2014 accounting period, the revenues of the Company were concentrated primarily with four main customers in the aviation industry, i.e. Sikorsky
Aircraft Corporation, the Ministry of Defense of the Czech Republic, Alenia Aeronautica S.p.A. and Empresa Brasileira de Aeronáutica S.A. (Embraer).
Subsidies received from the government for maintaining the Company’s operations totaling CZK 37,982 thousand and CZK 143,787
thousand in 2014 and 2013 are recorded in other operating revenues.

20. Personnel and related expenses

Average number of employees
Wages and salaries
Social security and health insurance
Social cost
Bonuses to statutory representatives
Total personnel expenses

2014 accounting period
of which: members
of managerial bodies
22
55,095
11,496
945
24
67,560

AERO Vodochody a.s. – in CZK
Clester a.s. - in EUR
Clarex Investments a.s. – in EUR
Clarex Investments a.s. – in EUR
Total

due dates
/ interest rates
2015/4.02 %
2015/7.58 %
2015/7.58 %
2015/6.10 %

amount in original
currency (in thousands)
35,674
169
800
300

2014

2013

35,674
4,684
22,180
8,318
70,856

42,766
4,579
21,939
8,228
77,512

The loans were classified as long-term as at 31 December 2013. The loans mature in 2015 and therefore they are classified as short-term
as at 31 December 2014.

The breakdown of personnel expenses is as follows (in CZK thousands):

total
personnel
1,848
766,085
251,865
16,327
2,521
1,036,798

related party

total
personnel
1,439
1,171,175
384,319
31,230
312
1,587,036

2013 accounting period
of which: members
of managerial bodies
13
67,841
14,524
1,753
112
84,231

The members and former members of statutory and supervisory bodies received total bonuses and other remuneration of CZK 2,521 thousand
and CZK 312 thousand in 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Short-term receivables from related parties as at 31 December were as follows (in CZK thousands):
related party
Clarex Investments a.s. - interest in EUR (estimated item)
Clarex Investments a.s. - advance payment in EUR
Clarex Investments a.s. - trade receivables in EUR
Clester a.s. - interest in EUR
Letiště Vodochody a.s. - trade receivables in CZK
AERO Vodochody a.s -interest in CZK
AERO Vodochody a.s. – trade receivables in CZK
AERO Vodochody a.s. – trade receivables in EUR
AB Facility, a.s.– trade receivables in CZK
OAKFIELD a.s.– trade receivables in CZK
TULAROSA a.s.– trade receivables in CZK
Total

2014
9,674
7
1,406
2,369
1,405
20,403
10,162
38
118
105
45,687

2013
7,404
3,306
7
1,042
2,128
176
58,958
22,379
8,893
104,293

As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, the Company recorded a deposit of CZK 112 thousand and CZK 108 thousand, respectively, in related party,
Privatbanka, a.s.
The Company purchases products and receives services from related parties in the ordinary course of business. Purchases were CZK 104,097
thousand and CZK 126,721 thousand in the 2014 and 2013, respectively.
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24. Statement of cash flows (see appendix 1)

Short-term payables to related parties as at 31 December were as follows (in CZK thousands):
related party
AERO Vodochody a.s.
AERO Vodochody a.s (interest)
Letiště Vodochody a.s.
Clarex Investments a.s. – (EUR 283)
AB Facility, a.s.(advance payment)
AB Facility, a.s.(liability)
AB Facility Services s.r.o.
Total

2014
2,113
62
3,936
7,845
136
12,586
905
27 583

2013
2,773
62
5,763
8,544
5,691
1,187
24,020

The cash flow statement was prepared under the indirect method.

25. Statement of changes in equity (see note 10)

At the end of 2013, the Company sold unusable inventories, whose value net of allowance was CZK 34,421 thousand, to AERO Vodochody a.s.
The selling price of the inventory totaling CZK 34,695 thousand was determined based on an expert’s opinion.

22. Research and development costs
Research and development costs amounted to CZK 421,481 thousand and CZK 660,003 thousand in 2014 and 2013, respectively.

23. Significant items of income statement
In 2014 and 2013, other operating revenues comprise in particular revenues from ceded receivables (see Note 6) and from received
subsidies (see Note 19).
In 2014 and 2013, other operating expenses include in particular the nominal value of ceded receivables (see Note 6), shortages and damages
and insurance fees.
Other finance income and expense include mainly exchange rate gains and losses in 2014 and 2013.
Fees paid to statutory auditors for assurance services are disclosed in the consolidated financial statements of the parent company.

Ladislav Šimek
Chairman of the board of directors
of AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s.
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Petr Brychta
Director
of AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s.

Report on relations
among related entities
Report of the Board of Directors of AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. regarding relations between controlling and controlled entity
and between controlled entity and entities controlled by the same controlling entity drawn-up pursuant to the provisions of Section 82-88
of Act No. 90/2012 Coll., on business corporations and cooperatives (the Business Corporations Act)

WING
The structure of the relations between the above-mentioned entities is illustrated in the following scheme.

PentaInvestments Group Limited (JE)

Part I

100%

PENTA INVESTMENTS LIMITED (JE)
100%

Vodochody Holdings Limited (CY)

Penta Investments Group Limited
having its registered seat at the address 47 Esplanade, St Helier, JE1 0BD, Jersey

100%



100%

Registration No.: 112 251

Part II

OAKFIELD a.s.

SALORI HOLDING B.V (NL)

100%

TULAROSA a.s.

100%

Letiště Vodochody a.s.

100%

AERO Vodochody a.s.

specified period
This report has been drawn-up for the period from 1 January 2014 until 31 December 2014.



controlling entity:



AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s.
having its registered seat at the address Odolena Voda, Dolínek, U Letiště 374, Postal Code 250 70
Business ID No.: 24194204
registered in the Commercial Register administered by the Municipal Court in Prague, Section B, Record 17749
(hereinafter referred to only as the “Company”)

100%



controlled entity:

AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s.

100%

LV-Solar Vodochody a.s.

100%

ClesterTrading a.s.

Part III
structure of the relations between controlling and controlled entity and between controlled entity and entities controlled by the same
controlling entity
The entities controlled by the same controlling entity comprise the Company and other entities that are controlled by it either directly
or indirectly, and further the companies controlled by the controlling entity, i.e., the entities controlled by Penta Investments Group Limited.

100%

ClarexInvestments a.s.

Part IV
role of the controlled entity in the structure of relations between the controlling entity and the controlled entity and the entities controlled
by the same controlling entity
AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. is a separate business enterprise with a specific scope of business within the ownership structure
of the controlling entity.
It thus does not perform any activities common for the remaining entities in the ownership structure of the controlling entity and is not
subordinate to uniform management - i.e., it does not form a concern together with the controlling entity and other entities within the
controlling entity's ownership structure.
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among related entities

Part VIII

Part V
method and means of control over the controlled entity
The controlling entity controls the controlled entity as it owns 100% of shares of AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. through a majority ownership
interest in the company TULAROSA a.s. The controlling entity performs its business interests through its shareholder's rights within the
superior body of the controlled entity, including appointment of persons to the statutory bodies of the controlled entity.

overview of actions taken during the last accounting period upon the motion or in the interest of the controlling entity or its controlled entities
of any such action related to the assets exceeding 10% of the equity capital of the controlled entity determined from the last financial statement.
During the period in question, no action relating to the assets exceeding 10 % of the equity capital of the controlled entity determined from the
last financial statement took place upon the motion or in the interest of the controlling entity or its controlled entities.

overview of agreements between the controlled entity and controlling entity or between controlled entities
A. No agreements have been executed between the controlled entity and the controlling entity during the specified period.
B. The following agreements were executed between the controlled entity and other entities controlled by the same controlling entity during
the specified period:

Letiště Vodochody a.s.
Letiště Vodochody a.s.
Letiště Vodochody a.s.

assessment of the advantages and disadvantages resulting from the relations between the controlling entity and the controlled entity and the
entities controlled by the same controlling entity
The fact that a strong financial group stands behind the controlled entity represents a great advantage for the controlled entity, regardless
whether in relation to banks, from which the controlled entity receives loans, or in relation to foreign clients where the controlling entity can
provide contractual support in business cases implementation.
There was no situation in the relationship between the controlling and controlled entity during the specified period that could be classified
as disadvantageous in a business or other sense.

Part VII

Letiště Vodochody a.s.

assessment as to whether the controlled entity has suffered any detriment and assessment of its settlement
There was no detriment caused to the controlled entity by actions of the controlling entity during the specified period and it was therefore
impossible to assess its settlement.

Part IX

Part VI

entity
PentaInvestments
Limited (Jersey)
Tularosa a.s.
OAKFIELD a.s.

WING

agreement name
Agreement on support of project No. 23030
during implementation of supported export
Agreement on provision of services
Agreement on provision of services
Agreement on termination of the General Agreement
on Demonstration of Simulator No. SM/55/LV
Agreement on utility network establishment
Loan Agreement
Amendment No. 1 to Agreement on Provision
of ServicesNo. SM/22/LV dated January 4, 2009

execution date

January 2, 2014
January 2, 2014

provided performance
Adjustment of the relations among the parties in
connection with the KC-390 Embraer project financing
Provision of accounting services
Provision of accounting services

July 29, 2014

General Agreement termination

June 27, 2014

Part X
conclusion
The Board of Directors of AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. hereby represents that it has used all the efforts of the reasonable person to
identify the range of relations between the controlling entity and the controlled entity and between the controlled entity and the entities
controlled by the same controlling entity for the purpose of preparation of this report, in particular by querying the controlling entity with
regard to the entities controlled by it during the period in question.
The Board of Directors of AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. hereby represents that all financial performance and/or counter-performance
provided on the groundwork of the relations specified in Part VII hereof were at the usual level.
This report has been submitted for review to the Supervisory Board and to the auditor responsible for review of the financial statement
pursuant to the provisions of special law.

April 24, 2014
Utility network establishment
September 15, 2014 Provision of power generator for an event at LKVO
January 1, 2014

Increase of the number of parking places

In Odolena Voda, on March 31, 2015

Ladislav Šimek
Chairman of the Board of Directors
AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s.
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Petr Brychta
Member of the Board of Directors
AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s.
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